
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Welcome to the City of Keller's Comprehensive  
Annual Financial Report on the Web! 

 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports are produced to provide the Mayor, City 
Council, City staff, citizens, bondholders and the general public with useful information 
about the City's operations and financial position.  
 
The City prepares financial reports to promote accountability. This annual report 
provides one way of assessing whether elected and appointed officials in the City are 
faithfully carrying out their role of good stewards of City resources. 
 
These reports are prepared by the Finance Department in accordance with standards 
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB), the Government 
Finance Officer Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) and other rule-
making bodies. The City is responsible for the accuracy, completeness and fairness of 
the data presented. 
 
The Table of Contents has been designed as a navigational tool for your assistance. 
You can go directly to any page within the document by clicking its listing in the Table of 
Contents.  
 
If you would like to obtain a bound copy or CD of this document, please click here to 
access the request form.  
 
Thank you for viewing the City of Keller's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report on 
the Web.  
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March 14,2007 

Citizens of Keller, Honorable Mayor Julie Tandy, Members of the 
City Council and City Manager 

City of Keller 
Keller, Texas: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of Keller, Texas (the City) for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2006, is hereby submitted. This report was prepared through the cooperative effort of the Finance 
Department and the City's independent auditors, in accordance with §103.001 of the Texas Local Government Code 
and Article VII, Section 15 of the Charter of the City of Keller. The purpose of the report is to provide the City Council, 
management, staff, the public, and other interested parties with detailed information reflecting the City's financial 
condition. 

Full responsibility for the accuracy and reliability of the data contained herein, as well as, completeness and fairness 
of this reDort includina all disclosures, rests with Citv manaaement. The Citv has established and maintains a svstem 
of internal accounting controls designed in part to povide a reasonable.assurance that assets are safeguarded 
against loss, theft, or unauthorized use, and that financial records can be relied upon to produce financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that the cost of maintaining the system of internal accounting controls should not exceed the benefits 
likely to be derived. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a 
manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the 
financial activity of its various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum 
understanding of the City's financial affairs have been included. As management, we assert that, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

The comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) is organized in three sections: Introductory, Financial, and 
Statistical. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, a list of principal officials, an organization chart. 
and other general information useful in assessing the City's financial condition. 

The financial section contains the opinion of the City's independent auditors, Rutledge Crain & Company, PC, 
Certified Public Accountants, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to 
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, 
are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent 
auditors concluded based-upon the aud't, tnat thgre was a reasonaole basis for rendering an unqualified opinion on 
the Citv's financial statements for the fiscal vear ended Se~tember 30. 2006, and that the financial statements are 
fairly in conformity with GAAP.  he independent guditors' report is presented as the first component of the 
financial section of this report. 

Also included in the thancial section is management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), which provides users of the 
basic financial statements a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The 
basic financial statements, including the accompanying notes, represent the core of the financial section. These 
financial statements present the financial condition of the City as a single entity, as well as the individual funds that 
account for the City's various governmental and business-type activities. This transmittal letter is designed to 
complement the MD&A, and should be read in conjunction with it. 

1100 BEAR Creek Parkway . P.O. BOX 770 * KELLER. TEXAS 76244 (817) 7434000 - FAX (817) 7434190 
Web: MtpJhww..dtyoRceller.com E-mail: townhall@dtyofkeller.mm 
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The statistical section includes a variety of financial, economic, and demographic information generally presented in a 
table format, on a multi-year basis, with comparative information, to give users of the report a perspective on the 
City's performance over a number of years. 

City Profile 

The City was incorporated on November 16, 1955 under the general laws of the State of Texas, and the current 
Home-rule Charter was approved by the voters in 1982. The City is a home-rule city and operates under the Council- 
Manager form of government. The City Council is comprised of a mayor and five council members, who enact local 
legislation, determine overall City policies, pass ordinances, appoint committees, and adopt the City's budget. The 
Mayor and Council Members are all elected at-large on a non-partisan basis. Council members are elected for a two- 
year term on a rotating basis, with the Mayor and two council members elected in odd-numbered years, and the 
remaining three council members elected on even-numbered years. The City Manager is appointed by the Mayor 
and City Council and is responsible to them for proper administration of the daily affairs of the City, and appointing 
the heads of the various departments. 

The City is located in Northeast Tarrant County, Texas, approximately 10 miles north of Fort Worth on U.S. Highway 
377, and 25 miles northwest of downtown Dallas. It is part of the "Metroplex" of North Central Texas, which includes 
the cities of Fort Worth and Dallas, as well as the surrounding communities, with an estimated population exceeding 
4.5 million. The city limits of Keller currently encompasses approximately 19 square miles. 

The City provides a full range of municipal services including general government, public safety (police and fire), 
streets, parks and recreation, community development, planning and zoning, code enforcement, a public library, and 
business-type activities, such as water and sewer, and drainage utilities. Sanitation collection services are provided 
through private contractors; non-residential customers contract with the collection firm of their choice, while 
residential customers contract through the City with collection fees added to their municipal water, sewer, and 
drainage utility bills. 

The Re~ortinp Entity. For financial reporting purposes, the City is a primary government. As previously, mentioned 
the City's governing body is elected by the citizens of Keller. This report includes all organizations and activities for 
which the elected officials exercise financial policy control. Included in the financial statements of the City are the 
activities of the Keller Development Corporation (KDC), the Keller Crime Control and Prevention District (KCCPD), 



and the Keller Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 1 (TlRZ or TIF). Since the City Council exercises financial 
policy control over these entities, they are included within this report. The City interacts or contracts with various 
other governmental entities (e.g., the Keller Independent School District), but is not financially accountable for those 
entities. 

Accountina system and budaetaw control. The annual budget of the City serves as the foundation for its financial 
planning and control. The budget is proposed by the City Manager and adopted by the City Council in accordance 
with policies and procedures established by the City Charter, Council ordinances and policies. The budget is 
prepared and presented by fund (e.g., general fund), department (e.g., police) or function (e.g.. debt service), and 
major cost category (e.g., personnel services). The department level within the individual fund is the legal level of 
control for budget expenditures. The budgetary process begins each year with the preparation of revenue estimates 
and budget instructions by the City's Finance Department staff, and expenditure estimates and requests by each City 
department. Estimates and requests are reviewed by the City Manager, and evaluated within the total financial 
framework of the City. The City Manager makes final decisions as to what budget recommendations are submitted to 
the City Council. The City Charter requires that the City Manager's proposed budget be filed with the City Secretary 
no later than August 1.5'" The City Manager's proposed budget is reviewed by the City Council, followed by a final 
public review process, including a required public hearing prior to budget adoption. The City Charter requires 
adoption of the City budget no later than the twenty-seventh (27th) day of the last month of the fiscal year. 

Budgetary reporting is provided at the department level within the individual fund. Transfers of budget appropriations 
within departments may occur with the approval of the City Manager, provided there is not an increase in overall 
expenditures. Transfers of budget appropriations between funds andlor departments, as well as any increase in total 
appropriations, require a formal budget amendment adopted by the City Council. Except for capital projects funds, all 
appropriations lapse at year-end and excess funds become available for re-appropriation in the subsequent year. At 
year end, encumbrances are recorded as a reservation of fund balance, and then re-appropriated in the subsequent 
year. 

Near the end of each fiscal year, as the budget for the ensuing fiscal year is being considered and adopted, the City 
Council traditionally adopts a current year revised budget by ordinance. Although not required by City Charter or 
policy, this revised budget presents a more accurate picture of the City's financial position at the end of the current 
year than does the original adopted budget. For the fiscal year ended September 30. 2006, a revised budget was 
approved by the City Council on September 19, 2006. The revised budget amounts are used throughout this report 
where applicable in the budget to actual comparisons. The report provides comparative information on the original 
adopted and revised budget where applicable. 

Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an 
appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this comparison is presented as required 
supplementary information. For governmental funds, other than the general fund, with appropriated annual budgets, 
this comparison is presented in the major and non-major governmental fund sections of this report. 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the 
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City operates. 

Local economv. The U.S. 377 corridor has been a hotbed of commercial activity over the past year. Among other 
developments the 101,792 square-foot Bear Creek Plaza was built along this commercial corridor. Two major medical 
offices were completed with the openings of the 39,000 square-foot Baylor Medical Plaza and 11,000 square-foot 
Lone Star Endoscopy center. The 43.000 square-foot Blue Sky Sports Center also opened their doors in 2006, just 
West of U.S. Highway 377 on Golden Triangle Boulevard. All of these new developments continue to add commercial 
property value to our tax base, reducing the tax burden on the average homeowner. 

Development is also booming in Town Center, with the construction of the estimated $24 million mixed-use Arthouse 
at Keller Town Center development, which is well underway. The $36 million Uptown Keller project has received 
approval and is anticipated to begin construction in February 2007. These new developments are adding significant 
value to several recently completed projects which include The Conservatory at Town Center, a 188-unit over-55 
adult living center and the 10,500 square-foot Bestawrous Professional Pyramid. 

In the area of sales tax growth, Keller businesses collected a record level of sales tax during the month of November 
2006 reflecting strong commercial and retail growth in the city. City sales tax revenue reached a high of $669,000 for 
the month, a 13.3 percent increase in revenue compared to November of last year. 



Residential growth remains strong both in terms of quantity and value of new development. The city issued 398 
residential building permits having an average construction permit value in excess of $349,000. In addition, the 
continued increase in population as depicted below combined with over 12,000 households has stimulated significant 
commercial and retail growth. The permit value of new commerciallretail business completions (certificates of 
occupancy) increased by 17.5% from 2005 to 2006 totaling over $55.1 million. 

Locallregional economic indicators remain strong with Northeast Tarrant County again projected to grow at a faster 
pace than other regions of Texas. 

According to the Texas Workforce Commission, the City's civilian labor force was 19,458 in September 2006, 
compared to a total civilian labor force for Tarrant County of 874,206. Keller's unemployment rate in September 2006 
was 3.2%, compared to the Tarrant County rate of 4.6%, and a statewide rate of 4.7%. 

The City continues to experience significant increases in population. The official census population for 1990 and 
2000 was 13,683 and 27,345 respectively. The January 2006 population estimate was 36.328, representing an 
increase of 22,645 (165%) over 1990, and 8,983 (32.9%) increase since 2000. The following table presents Keller's 
ofticial Census population since 1970, as well as the current year estimated population. 

Since 1970, the total population increase is over 34.850. This increasing population trend is anticipated to continue 
for several years, although at a more reasonable pace. The City's estimated population by 2010 will be 40,127. 
Tarrant County has experienced similar growth during the last 30 years, increasing from 715,587 in 1970 to 
1,410,740 in 2000. an increase of over 97%. According to the North Central Texas Council of Governments 
population projections, the population of Tarrant County in 2010 is anticipated to be 1,746,082, an increase of 
approximately 20% over 2000. 

1970 Census 
1960 Census 
1990 Census 
2000 Census 
2006 Estimate 

Another factor in measuring the local economy is its overall real market value of the City. For Keller, this trend 
continues to be positive, although the rate of growth is slowing. Since 2000, the market value of property within 
Keller has more than doubled. Most of the increase has been the result of new residential development. Market 
values IIrovide a better indication of new develooment than do taxable values. since taxable values are derived after 
dedJctlng tne varlous allowable exemptions. ~ a r k e t  values provde the total est maled act~al  (market) val~es of all 
properties within the City. Tne fo low:ng table provioes the total market va ues of the City of Keller s h e  2000. 

Population 
1,474 
4.156 

13,683 
27,345 
36,328 

Fiscal 
Year Ended 

September 30 

Total 
Market 

Value (000's) 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

N A 
2.662 
9.527 

13,662 
8,983 

Percent 
Change 

Percent 
Change 

N A 
182.0% 
229.2% 
99.8% 
32.9% 

The rate of increase in the City's total market value has slowed from a five-year average rate of increase of 18.9% 
from fiscal year 1999-2000 through fiscal year 2002-2003. to an increase of 8.5% for fiscal year 2005-06. The 
reduction in the rate of increase in taxable values has also impacted the City's general fund operations, since 
property tax revenues comprise over 40% of the total revenue for the general fund. City management will continue 
to monitor local economic trends, in order to maintain adequate fund balance reserve levels, and also to meet policy 
targets. 



The net assessed taxable value for calendar year 2005 (fiscal year 2006) increased 8.8% over calendar year 2004 
(fiscal year 2005), compared to the prior year's increase of 6.4%. The growth in revenue produced the funding 
necessary to meet most of the significant 2006 goals of the City Council, such as holding the line on the tax rate at 
$0.44413 per $100 of taxable value; maintaining the financiallbudget targets to ensure the fiscai stability of the City's 
operations; and maintaining the employee compensation plan. 

The 118"' of one percent local option sa es tax for maintenance and rehab:l:tarion of existing streets was approved by 
voters in November 2003. Tax co ections commenced in m'o fiscal vear 2004 and aenerated $185.789 tnat enaoled ~u~ ~~ ~~ 

. ~ - ,  ~- ~ ~~~~ - ~ ~ -  ~~-~ 

the City to begin its rehabilitation of over $5,000,000 needed for sireet rehabilitation or reconstruction. For fiscal 
years 2005 and 2006, $402,351 & $469,856 was collected, respectively. The use of this non-property tax revenue 
has enabled the city to shift a portion of general fund revenue (previously dedicated to street maintenance) to other 
priorities. 

All of the fifteen General Fund employee full-time positions frozen during 2003 had been filled at the end of fiscal year 
2006 in a gradual replacement of frozen positions over a 3-year period. While the unfilled positions created minor 
operational hardships, the operating departments continued to maintain a high and responsive level of service 
delivery. 

Lona-term financial ~lannina. The City maintains a five-year capital improvement program (CiP), with all planned 
capital projects reviewed annually and prioritized by the City staff and City Council. This annual review allows the 
City to change and adjust priorities by responding to changing growth patterns, economic conditions, or federal and 
state mandates. The ClP is used exclusively as a planning tool, and therefore does not commit the City to any 
project or project funding. The intent of the CIP is for the City staff to identify and prioritize specific capital 
improvements needed during the subsequent five years. The CIP is not a capital budget, and as such provides only 
recommended projects and the means of financing the improvements. Recommended improvements are not 
approved until official action has been taken by the City Council. 

The most recently updated plan is the 2006 plan that identified over $82.7 million of capital improvements during the 
next five years (through 201 1). These recommended improvements are identified by the following activities: 

Streets and drainage improvements 
Fire and emeraencv medical services - .. 
Water and sewer improvements 
Police department improvements 
Parks and recreation 
Municipal facilities and other 

$37.2 million (45%) 
20.8 million 125%) 
19.0 million (23%j 
2.7 million (3%) 
1.6 million (2%) 
1.4 million (2%) 

These improvements provide for new facilities and facilities expansion; land acquisition; equipment acquisition and 
replacement; athletic fields, parks and park facilities; and water and sewer mains, facilities, and storage facilities. The 
majority of these improvements (57%) are anticipated to be funded by debt obligations. Debt obligations include both 
self-supporting debt (e.g., water and sewer improvements), and general obligation debt (e.g., street and drainage 
improvements). 

The Finance Department also prepares an internal five-year financial forecast for the General Fund, Debt Service 
Fund, and the Keller Development Corporation. The forecast is also used as an informational planning tool for the 
City Council, when considering the future financial impacts on operations, resulting from issuing debt obligations for 
capital improvements. 

Cash manaaement. The City awards its bank depository services contract through competitive proposals for a three- 
year period with two additional one year renewal options. The City is currently in the fourth year of the depository 
contract, with an additional one year renewal option remaining. Should the City exercise the renewal option for the 
fifth year, the existing depository contract will expire on June 30, 2007. The City has a services only contract, where 
a minimum amount of cash is held in checking accounts to meet the City's operational needs. 

The remaining idle cash is invested by City officials in securities and other investments, such as local government 
investment pools and government securities, as allowed by Texas Statutes and the City's investment policy. The City 
has also contracted with an investment advisory firm through a competitive proposal contract. The investment 
advisory services contract is limited to two years by Texas Statutes. The most recent investment advisory services 
contract expired in November 2005, and was renewed for another two year term, through November 2007. 

The average balance of the City's investment potifolio for fiscal year 2006 was approximately $36.92 million, and the 
overall porlfolio provided $1,645,396 in unrestricted investment income, compared to $957,014 in 2005, an increase 
of almost 72%. The average return on the portfolio for fiscal year 2006 was 4.4155%, compared to the City's 



targeted return of 4.5528%. The average return on the portfolio for the previous fiscal year was 2.5836%, compared 
to the targeted return of 2.7317% 

It is tne City's policy that all demand deposits and t:me deposits are seared by pleogeo co latefa. with a market value 
e q ~ a l  to no less than 100% of the deposits, less an amoJnt insured oy the FDIC. Ev~dence of the p eoged collateral 
ismaintained by the Finance ~ e ~ a r t m e n t  and a third party financial 'nstitution. Collateral is reviewedno less than 
monthly to ensure that the market value of the securities pledged equals or exceeds the related bank balances. 

The City maintains an internal cashlinvestment pool that is available for use by several funds. The primary purpose 
of using a pooled cashlinvestment concept is to increase interest income through ease of investment transactions. 
Earnings from these pooled investments are distributed to the appropriate fund, based on each fund's equity in the 
investment pool. 

The investment of City funds is governed by an investment policy adopted annually by the City Council in accordance 
with State law. The investment policy establishes an investment committee, comprised of 5 members of City Staff, 
plus one member of the City Council. Quarterly investment reports are prepared by City officials and the investment 
advisory firm, reviewed by the City's investment committee, and presented to the City Council. In addition the 
investment advisory firm recommends investment strategies, and monitors results of the investment program, in 
accordance with the stated objectives and strategies of the investment policy. The investment policy also establishes 
specific collateral and safekeeping requirements. 

Risk manaaement. The City provides an indemnity plan for employee group health and life insurance coverage 
throuah Blue CrossIBlue Shield of Texas. Workers' com~ensation and liabilitv and DroDertv insurance coveraae is 
provided by the Texas Municipal League ~nter~overnment'al Risk Pool, an insuiance p o i  esiablished for the poitical 
subdivisions of the State of Texas. The Citv's worker comoensation rates are determined bv the State. and the Risk 
Pool assigns discounts and experience raings based on ihe City's past claims history. 6rerniums a;e paid to the 
Pool, which retains a limit of loss. For risks beyond the Pool's limits of liability, the Pool obtains reinsurance for 
excess coverage. The City retains as a risk only the deductible amount for each policy. Unemployment com- 
pensation coverage is provided on a reimbursement basis to the Texas Workforce Commission for unemployment 
claims paid to former employees. 

Em~lovee's retirement system. The City provides retirement benefits for all full-time employees through a non- 
traditional, joint contributory, defined contribution plan in the Texas Municipal Retirement System, an agent multiple- 
employer public employee retirement system. Employees contribute 7% of their gross salary, and the City contributes 
the employer's contribution rate of 12.68% for calendar year 2005, and 11 6 %  for calendar year 2006. The City 
employees also participate in the U.S. Social Security system. The City also offers its employees a deferred 
compensation plan created in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, which is available 
to all employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. 

Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annual financial report for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2005; a reproduction of the certificate is included in this report. The City has 
received a Certificate of Achievement for seventeen consecutive fiscal years (FYI989 through FY2005). In order to 
be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized 
comprehensive annual financial report, the contents of which must conform to program standards. Such reports must 
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for the period of one year only. We believe our current report continues to 
conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine 
its eligibility for another certificate. 

In addition to the Certificate of Achievement, the City also received GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award 
for its fiscal vear 2006 annual budaet document. In order to aualifv for the award, the Citv's budoet document was " , , - 
judged to be proficient in several categories including policy documentation, financial planning, and as an operations 
guide. The City has received the award for 10 consecutive years (1997 - 2006). Recognition by GFOA as evidenced 
by these two awards is verification of the Finance department's dedication to producing documents that effectively 
communicate the City's financial condition. 

The preparation of this report could not be accomplished without the dedicated services of the entire staff of the 
Finance Department. Many individuals devoted extra hours and exhibited dedicated effort in ensuring the accuracy 



and timeliness of this report. Appreciation is expressed to the City employees throughout the organization, especially 
those responsible for the maintenance of records upon which this report is based. Acknowledgment is also given to 
representatives of Rutledge Crain & Company, PC, Certified Public Accountants, for their dedicated assistance in 
producing this report. 

Finally, our appreciation is extended to the Mayor, the members of the City Council and the City Manager for their 
interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and progressive 
manner. 

Re~peCtfull~ submitted, 

Johnny ~ h i f e r  
Director of Finance 
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RUTLEDGE CRAlN & COMPANY, PC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

2401 Garden Park Court. Suite B 
Arlington. Texas 76013 

Independent Auditors' Report on Financial Statements 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Keller, Texas 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Keller. Texas, as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Keller, Texas' management. Our responsibility is to express 
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Keller, Texas, as of September 30, 2006, and the respective changes in financial position and cash 
flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 12 through 22 and 53 through 
58, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary 
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of 
Keller, Texas' basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements and schedules, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part 
of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules have been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated 
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections 
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on them. 

December 9,2066 

Members: 
Metro (817) 265-9989 American institute of Cenified Public Accountants 

Texas Society of Certified Public Accountants 
Fax (817) 861-9623 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 

Managemenf's Discussion and Analysis 
For Year Ended September 30, 2006 
(Unaudited) 

As management of the City of Keller (the City), we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative overview 
and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006. Readers are 
encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information provided in the 
transmittal letter at the front of this report, and the City's financial statements, which follow this section. 

Financial Highlights 

The City's assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of the 2006 fiscal year by $150,687,546 (net assets). Of 
this amount, $24,621,094 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to 
citizens and creditors, in accordance with the City's fund designation and fiscal policies. 

The City's total net assets increased by $10,520,424, or 7.5%. The net assets of governmental activities 
increased $4,395,855, or approximately 5.7%. This increase in net assets resulted in part from slight 
increases in ad valorem (property) taxes, sales, and franchise taxes, and development-related revenues. 
The assets of business-type activities increased by $6,124,569, or 9.7%. The increase was due in part to 
dry weather conditions, resulting in increased water usage and related water and wastewater revenues, 
combined with a water and wastewater rate increase. 

As of September 30, 2006, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$18,522,630. Approximately 76% of this total amount, $14,021,445, is unreserved and available for use 
within the City's designation and policies. Reservations for (1) encumbrances $848,559; (2) special uses 
$3,257,194; (3) interfund advances $28,513; (4) prepaid items $170,563; (5) inventory $28,675; and (6) debt 
service $167,681; total $4,501,185, and approximately 24% of the total fund balance. 

Total cost of all the City's programs was $53,554,548 in 2006, compared to $50,430,945 in 2005. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the General Fund was $6,710,715, or 
34.8% of total expenditures. This represents an increase of $1,893,315, or 39.3% from the prior fiscal year 
due mainly to slight increases in property, sales, and franchise taxes, combined with cost savings 
throughout all general fund departments (actual expenditures less than budgeted expenditures). 

o The City's total debt outstanding (excluding bond premiums and discounts) decreased by $2,810,977 (2.3%) 
during the current fiscal year, primarily the result of retirement of existing debt. During the year, the City 
issued $4.5 million in certificates of obligation: $4.2 million for water improvements, and $0.27 million for 
vehicle and equipment replacements. 

Overview of Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The City's 
basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund 
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplemental 
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

The government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the City's overall 
financial status. The fund financial sfatements focus on individual parts of the City's government, reporting operations 
in more detail than the government-wide statements. In addition to these required elements, we have included other 
information such as the City's long-term debt schedules, and a statistical section, which primarily through the use of 
tables, presents comparative economic and financial data to provide users of this report a perspective of the City's 
financial performance over a number of years. 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's 
finances in a manner similar to private-sector business. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between 
the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may indicate the improvement or 
deterioration of the City's financial position. 



C I N  OF KELLER, TEXAS 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For Year Ended September 30, 2006 
(Unaudited) 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net assets change during the fiscal year. All 
changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of 
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will 
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned, but unused compensated 
absences). 

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into two categories: 

Governmental activities - These are functions such as public safety, public works, planning and 
development, general government, and recreation and leisure, including the Keller Public Library, that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue. 

Business-type activities - These functions are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs 
through user fees and charges. Business-type activities of the City include Water and Sewer, and Drainage 
Utility operations. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found in Exhibits A-I and A-2 of this report. 

Fund financial statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of 
the City can be divided into two categories - governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of spendable resources, as 
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the 
long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and 
the governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation 
to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The C~ty malnta ns 20 governmental funds nformatlon s presented separately n the Governmental F ~ n d  Balance 
Sheet an0 in tne Governmental Fund Statement of Reven~es. ExDenOltureS and Chanaes In Fund Ba ances for the 
general and debt service funds, both of which are considered to be major funds Data from the other 18 
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non- 
major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found in Exhibits A-3 and A-5 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds -There are two types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal service funds. The City 
maintains only one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions as business-type 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for both the water 
and sewer, and drainage utilities. The City has no internal service funds. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more 
detail. The enterprise fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water and Wastewater 
Operations, and Drainage Utility funds, since both are considered major funds of the City. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found in Exhibits A-7 through A-9 of this report. 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For Year Ended September 30, 2006 
(Unaudited) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provlded n the government-wlde and fun0 financla, statements The notes to bas~c 
financial statements can be found on pages 34 thro~gh 50 of thls report 

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplementary information. Required supplementary information can be found following the notes to 
the financial statements. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental 
funds are presented following the required supplementaly information. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City's financial position. In the case of 
the City of Keller, assets exceeded liabilities by $150,687,546 as of September 30, 2006. 

The largest portion of the City's net assets, $115.7 million (76.8%), reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g., 
land, buildings, equipment, improvements, construction in progress, and infrastructure), less any debt used to acquire 
those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, 
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net 
of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, 
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the City's net assets, $10.4 million (6.9%), represents resources that are subject to external 
restriction on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets, $24.6 million (16.3%), may be 
used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

Total assets of governmental activities decreased bv $1.704.967. or 1.0% in fiscal vear 2006. The decrease in total 
assets of governmental activities results primarily from a decrease in net capital assets. The decrease in net capital 
assets of $2.566.965 (1.6%) is net of accumulated de~reciation. a non-cash exoense. Durina the vear. COmDleted . .  . - , . 
capital assets were tiansfeked from the construction' in ~rocess category, where assets are not depreciated, to 
completed construction, where assets are depreciated. Even though total assets decreased, net assets of 
governmental activities increased $4,395,855, or 5.7%. Total liabilities of governmental activities decreased 
$6,100,823, or 6%. Non-current liabilities of governmental activities decreased by $5,562,276 or 5.7%. The reduction 
in liabilities of governmental activities is primarily due to the retirement of outstanding debt service. 

Total assets of business-type activities increased by $8,471,882, or 9.3%. Total current assets increased $3,341,349 
(13.9%), while total capital assets increased $5,130,533 (7.7%), respectively. Net assets of business-type activities 
increased $6,124.568, or 9.7%. The increase in current and other assets is due primarily to proceeds of new debt 
issued in 2006 for water improvements, combined with dry weather conditions that contributed to increases in water 
and wastewater revenues. Total capital assets increased as a result of the construction of new capital projects for 
water and wastewater improvements. The total liabilities for business-type activities increased $2,347,314, or 8.6% 
mainly due to the previously mentioned new debt issued during the year. 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For Year Ended September 30, 2006 
(Unaudited) 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 

Current and other assets $22,977,798 $22,115,800 $27,430,471 $24,089,122 $ 50,408,269 $ 46,204,922 
Capital assets 154,050,523 156,617,488 71,778,708 66,648,175 225,829,231 223,265,663 

Total Assets 177,028,321 178,733,288 99,209,179 90,737,297 276,237,500 269,470,585 

Long term liabilities 92,389,054 97,951.330 26.549.289 24,065.041 118.938.343 122.016.371 . . . . 
other liabilities 3,513,000 4,051.547 3,098;611 3,235,545 661 1,611 7;287;092 

Total liabilities 95,902,054 102,002,877 29,647,900 27,300,586 125,549,954 129,303,463 

Net Assets: 
Invested in capital assets, 63,207,052 62,602,173 52,467,582 45,059,859 115,674.634 107,662,032 

net of related debt 
Restricted 9,909,962 8,444,642 481.856 481,855 10,391.818 8,926,497 
Unrestricted 8,009,253 5,683,597 16,611.841 17,894,996 24,621,094 23,578,593 
Total Net Assets $81,126,267 $76,730,412 $69,561,279 $63,436.710 $150,687,546 $140,167,122 

Analysis of the City's Operations -The following table provides a summary of the City's operations for the year 
ended September 30, 2006. Overall the City had an increase in net assets of $10,520,424. 

Government Activities 

Government activities increased the City's net assets by $4,395,855, or 5.7% from the prior year. Total governmental 
revenues increased $1,147,928 (3%). Major increases in revenues were sales tax revenues ($1,066,524); tines, 
fees, and charges for services ($773,163), and ad valorem taxes ($888,982). Sales taxes increased due to an 
increase in retail establishments and related taxable sales, resulting from continued strong economic development 
activity. Fines, fees, and charges for services increased primalily because of the user fees for The Keller Pointe 
Recreation and Aquatic Center, and building/development fees. Charges for services for the Keiler Pointe increased 
$905.441. Ad valorem taxes increase0 oecause of the increase in taxable va ues from the prior year oy approximately 
9.7%. Capital aranls and contrioutions decrease0 $2.373.429 (45%). res~ltina ~rimari v from a decrease in ca~i ta . - . . 
contributions from developers for infrastructure assets (streets); andcompletL" of grint-funded capital projecis in 
fiscal year 2005 (e.g.. The Parks at Town Center). 

Total governmental expenses increased by $1,606,433 (4.5%). The largest change in expenses was an increase of 
$766,627, or 10.5% in recreation and leisure expenses. This increase is primarily due to the growth in programs and 
related operations of The Keller Pointe Recreation and Aquatic Center. Public safety expenses increased $737,384, 
or 7.5% primarily due to filling previously vacant (frozen) positions. Interest expense decreased $154,978, or 3.5%, 
primarily due to retirement of long-term debt. 

Business-type Activities 

Net assets from business-type activities increased by $6,124,569, or 9.6%. Total expenses increased by $1,517,170, 
or 10.1% primarily because of an increase of $900,767, or 19.7%, in wholesale water purchases because of dry 
weather conditions, and increases in electrical costs for system operations. Total revenues increased $4,557,143 
(22.5%), with an increase of $4,048,327 (26.1%) in charges for services. Charges for service increased due to 
increased water usage as a result of the aforementioned dry weather conditions, combined with water and sewer rate 
increases of approximately 9.5% and 8.5% that were implemented in April 2005 and April 2006 respectively. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For Year Ended September 30, 2006 
(Unaudited) 

C l N  OF KELLER'S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

Government Activities Business-type Activities Total 
M06 2005 2W6 2005 2006 2005 

Revenues: 
Program Revenues: 
Charges for setvices $ 10,025,176 $ 9,252,013 $ 19,544,472 $ 15,496,145 $ 29,569,648 $ 24,748,158 
Operating grants and 259,871 379,393 - - 259,871 379,393 
wntributions 

Capital grants 8 wntributions 2,904,694 5,278,123 4,555,755 4,109,945 7,460,449 9,388,068 
General revenues: 
Ad valorem (pmpelty) taxes 14.459.067 13,570,085 - - 14,459,067 13,570,085 
Sales taxes 7,534.422 6,467,898 - - 7,534,422 6,467,898 
Other taxes 3,138,860 2,654,700 - - 3,138,860 2,654.700 
Investment earnings 930,146 534.625 715,250 422,389 1,645,396 957,014 
Miscellaneous 4,660 (27,869) (5,051) 232,453 (391) 204,584 
Gain (loss) on saletretirement of 

capital assets - - 7,650 - 7,650 - 
Total revenues 39,256,896 38,108,968 24,818,076 20,260,932 84,074,972 58,369,900 

Expenses: 
General governmnt 4,814,291 
Community development 1,251,056 
Public safety 10,627,205 
Public wrks 7,735.718 
Recreation & leisure 8,089.054 
Nondepadmental 231,915 
Interest on long-tenn debt 4,303,912 
Water and sewer operations - 
Drainage utility 
Total expenses 

increase (decrease) in net 
assets before transfers 2,203,745 2,662,250 8,316,679 5,276,705 10,520,424 7,938,955 

Transfers in (out) 2,192,110 2,243,800 (2,192,110) (2,243,800) - - 
Increase (decrease) in 4,395,855 4,906,050 6,124,569 3,032,905 10,520,424 7,938,955 

net assets 
Net assets - October 1 76.730.412 71,824,362 63,436,710 60,403,805 140,167,122 132,228,167 
Net assets - September 30 $81,126,267 $76,730,412 $69,561,279 $63,436,710 $ 150,687,546 5 140,167,122 
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Total Sources of Revenue - $64,074,971 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For Year Ended September 30, 2006 
(Unaudited) 

Financial Analysis of  the City's Funds 

Governmental funds - The focus of the City of Keller's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing 
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$18,522,630, an increase of $1,361,043 (7.9%) in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 24%, or $4,501 , I  85 
of this total fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been 
committed to: 1) pay for encumbrances, or liquidate contracts and purchase orders at the end of the year ($848,559); 
2) for special uses ($3,257,194); 3) for interfund loans ($28,513); 4) for prepaid items ($170,563); 5) for inventories 
($28,675); and 6) to pay for debt service ($167,681). Approximately 76% of the total amount ($14,021,445) 
constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for appropriation by the City Council. A portion of this 
unreserved fund balance, while not legally obligated, is planned for future capital projects. 

Enterprise Funds - The City's enterprise fund statements provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Total unrestricted net assets of enterprise funds were $16,611,841. Unrestricted net assets of the respective funds 
are: Water and Wastewater-$16,347,659, and Drainage Utility-$264,182. The Water and Wastewater operations had 
an increase in net assets of $5,680,735, while the Drainage Utility had an increase in net assets of $443,834. The 
increase in the net assets of the Drainage Utility resulted from an increase in capital contributions from developers 
over the previous year of $104,468, combined with increases in service charges, and a decrease in operating 
expenses. The increase in water and wastewater net assets is due primarily to increased water and wastewater 
revenues billed to customers because of increased water usage resulting from dry weather conditions, combined with 
water and wastewater rate increases implemented in April 2005 and April 2006, as well as an increase in developer 
capital contributions of approximately $464,282. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights - In fiscal year 2006, the City Council approved revisions to the original budget 
appropriations. Although not required by official City policy or Charter, the annual budget is traditionally amended by 
the City Council toward the end of the fiscal year, in conjunction with the review and adoption of the subsequent 
year's budget. During the current year review process, all revenue sources and line-item expenditures are reviewed 
and adjusted to account for increases andlor decreases occurring during the year. As a result, a revised (final) 
budget, which reflects the recommended changes made to the original adopted budget, is usually adopted each 
September. The revised budget amounts are used throughout this report as the amended adopted (final) budget. 

Significant budget changes: 

The original general fund budget reflected a net decrease of $648,490 in the unreserved fund balance, while the final 
budget reflected an increase of $465,000 in the unreserved fund balance, a difference of $1 , I  13,490. The original 
budget included a total ending fund balance of $3,415,766, while the final budget total ending fund balance was 
$5,516,319. The final budgeted increase in fund balance was part of the City's plan to maintain the current property 
tax rate, while also meeting the City's financial policy target balance of 13% of operating expenditures. Total final 
budgeted revenues and transfers in increased $1,713,225 from the original budget, with significant increases 
occurring in sales tax revenue ($481,000), franchise and other taxes ($420,070), and building and development fees 
($387,200). Total final budgeted expenditures and transfers out increased by $599,735 over the original budget. The 
most significant increase in expenditures was a transfer to the capital projects fund of $900,000, to be set aside for 
future capital improvements. The increase in transfers out was combined with other decreases in expenditures 
throughout all the departments of the City. 
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Significant budget variances: 

Total actual revenues and transfers in exceeded the final budgeted amounts by $577,707. or 2.6%. The most 
significant variance was interest income ($132,162, a 55% increase over the final budget amount), resulting primarily 
from increased market rates, combined with additional funds available for investment. Actual revenues for all 
revenue categories, with the exception of intergovernmental revenues, exceeded the final budgeted amounts. 
Permits. licenses and fees exceeded the final budaet bv $98.079 (3.9%) due to an increase in buildina and 
construction activity; charges for services exceeded th;! finai budget by $95,499 (18.3%) primarily due to an increase 
in ambulance fee revenue: fines exceeded the final budaet amount bv $93.237 (9.5%) due orimarilv to an increase in 
municipal court citations. iotal actual expenditures and-transfers oui were less'than'final budgetid expenditures by 
$828,718. The positive total actual expenditure variance from the final budget was primarily due to efforts of all 
department managers to keep actual expenditures below the final budgeted expenditures. 

As a measure of liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and the total fund balance to 
total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 35.2% (financial policy target = 13%) of total fund 
expenditures, while the total fund balance represents 36.7% of that same amount. The actual total ending fund 
balance of $7,076,866 at September 30,2006 is an increase of $1,560,547 (28.3%) over the final adopted budget. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Ca~ital  assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of 
September 30, 2006, amounts to $225,829,231 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets 
includes land, buildings, equipment, improvements, improvements other than buildings, and construction in progress. 
The total increase in the City's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for the current fiscal 
year was $2,563,568, or 1.2% (a 1.6% decrease in capital assets for governmental activities and 7.7% increase in 
capital assets for business-type activities, respectively). 

Capital asset contributions, primarily from developers, for fiscal year 2006 were $7,460.449, a decrease of 
$1,927,619, or 20.5% from the prior year. 

This year's major additions include (000's): 
Keller-Smithfield Road street improvements 
1 million gallon elevated water storage tank on Keller-Smithfield Road 
Keller-Smithfield Road water distribution improvements 
3 million gallon water ground storage tank on Pearson Road 
KellerISouthlake 42-inch water supplyldistribution improvements 
Street improvements funded from the 118'~ cent street maintenance sales tax 

Total 

Ongoing projects (000's): 
Katy Road water improvement project 
Land acquisition for new Fire Station No. 4 

In addition to the above ongoing projects, there are several street improvement projects that are in the design phase, 
includina Elm Street Bridae imorovements (Texas Deoartment of Transoortation). North Tarrant Parkwav desian (a 
joint priect with Tarrant Eouniy, Keller, and the city b North Richland ~i l ls) ,  and the Elm Street/U.S. ~ ( ~ h w a y 3 f 7  
one-way couplet (Texas Department of Transportation). 

The five-year capital improvements program for fiscal years 2006-07 through 2010-1 1 identifies approximately $82 
million of capital projects, comprised primarily of streets and drainage improvements (45%), water and wastewater 
improvements (23%), and public safety (police and fire departments) improvements (28%). Currently, none of the 
$82 million projects have been authorized or funded at this time. 
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Capital Assets at Year-end 
Net o f  Accumulated Depreciation 

Government Activities Business-type Activities Total 

Land $ 18,871,354 $ 18,311,087 $ 1,122,730 $ 1,122,492 $ 19,994,084 $ 19,433,579 
Buildings 41,198,595 42,828,641 - - 41,198,595 42,828,641 
Equipment 3,850,605 4,567.792 809,898 861,256 4,660,503 5,429,048 
Improvements 89,329,996 87,985,163 69,721,519 59,409,373 159.051.515 147,394,536 
Construction in Progress 799,973 2,924,805 124,561 5,257,155 924.534 8,181,960 
Total $154,050,523 $156,617,488 $71,778,708 $66,650,276 $225,829.231 $223,267,764 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 1I.D. to the financial statements 

Debt administration. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Keller had a total debt outstanding and capital 
leases payable (excluding bond premiums and discounts) of $119,115,224. Of this amount, $92,210,214 comprises 
debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City, and $26,905,010 represents bonds secured solely by self- 
supporting activities, i.e., the water and sewer revenues. Total outstanding debt of governmental activities 
decreased $5,713,927 (5.8%), while total outstanding debt of business-type activities increased $2,902,950 (12.1%). 

Outstanding Debt at Year End 

Government Activities Business-type Activities Total 

Type of Debt 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 

General obligation $21,226,400 $ 22,927,061 $ 9,768,600 $10,198,030 $ 30,995,000 5 33,125,091 
Revenuebonds 890,000 1,035,000 - - 890,000 1,035,000 
Certificates of obligation 69,425,000 73,210,000 15,515,000 11,785,000 84,940,000 84,995,000 
Contractual obligations - - 1,621.410 2,019,030 1,621,410 2,019,030 
Capita leases 668,814 752 080 - - 668,814 752.080 
Total $92,210,214 $ 97.924.141 $26,905,010 $24,002,060 $119,115,224 $ 121,926,201 

As of September 30, 2006, of the $92,210,214 in o~tstanoing debt of governmenta activities backed by the 1.. I faitn 
an0 credit of the C'ty. approximately 57%. or $52,375,000. is self-s~ppofled debt from the fol owing sodrces: 

Keller Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 1 $32,075,000 
Keller Development Corporation 18,805,000 
Keller Crime Control Prevention District 1,495,000 

Therefore 43%, or $39,835,214, is backed by the full faith and credit of the City's general property tax base. 

During the fiscal year, the City's total outstanding debt decreased by $2,810,977, or 2.3%. The decrease was 
primarily due to current year debt payments, combined with $4.5 million in new debt issued during the year. The debt 
issued by the City during 2006 was for the following: 
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The City issued $4,525,000 in Certificates of Obligation, Series 2006 for the following projects: 

Water & Wastewater improvements (self-supporting): 
Keller-Smithfield Road water distribution improvements $1,520.000 
Pearson Lane Pump Station improvements 1,060,000 
Keller Parkway water distribution improvements 1,625,000 

Subtotal 4,205,000 

Vehiclelequipment replacements (tax-supported): 
Police vehicles and associated equipment 150,000 
Street maintenance equipment 120.500 

Subtotal 270,500 

~ssuancellegal costs 49.500 

Total $4.525.000 

In addition, the City issued $890,000 in Keller Development Corporation Series 2005 Sales Tax Revenue 
Refunding Bonds in January 2006, refunding outstanding Keller Development Corporation Series 1992 
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds. The Series 2005 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds had a net interest rate of 
4.21% and resulted in a present value benefit of $52,100. The net debt of the Corporation increased 
$45,000 as a result of the refunding. These revenue bonds are supported by the sales tax revenues 
generated from the half-cent local option sales tax. The original amortization period was not extended as a 
result of the refunding. 

The City maintains favorable ratings from bond rating agencies. The City's General Obligation, Combination Tax and 
Revenue Certificates of Obligation ratings are as follows: 

Moody's Standard 
Investors Setvice 8 Poor's 

General obligation bonds (tax supported) A1 A+ 
Certificates of obligation (tax supported) A1 A+ 
Revenue bonds: As of September 30. 2006. the only remaining revenue bond debt outstanding is $890,000 
Keller Development Corporation Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2005. 

Several of the City's outstanding bonds are insured by various commercial companies, and thus are rated "Aaa" by 
Moody's and "AAA" by SBP. In July 2006, Moody's Investors Services upgraded the City's general obligation and 
certificates of obligation debt from A2 to A l .  Since 2000, the City's debt has been upgraded a total of 5 times. 

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 1I.F. to the basic financial statements. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

In the fiscal year 2006-07 budget, general fund revenues and transfers in were budgeted to increase by $1,209,220 
(5.4%) from the 2005-06 budget year with general property taxes comprising about 41% of General Fund budgeted 
revenues and transfers in. Certified taxable assessed valuations increased 10.4% over the prior year, compared to 
an increase of 9.7% last year. Projected increases in sales tax receipts (6%) continue in fiscal year 2006-07 because 
of new retail outlets being opened in Keller, and continued increases in historical growth trends. A slight increase in 
the amount of investment income is also projected due to the Federal Reserve Board's actions increasing short-term 
interest rates. Development-related budgeted revenues for the 2006-07 fiscal year were decreased by $99.000, or 
4% over fiscal year 2005-06, primarily due to a conservative budget approach; however, development activity is 
anticipated to continue at a strong pace. 

These revenue projections, combined with an effort to maintain ending fund balances as required by the City's 
financial policies, resulted in an increase in the projected ending fund balance. Budgeted expenditures increased by 
15%, primarily as a result of increases in capital outlay, maintaining the employee compensation plan, and the 
addition of approximately 7 full-time equivalent positions, primarily in public safety (2 full-time equivalent positions for 
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the Police Department, and 3.75 for the Fire Department, respectively). The adopted budget maintains the required 
ending fund balance at September 30, 2006 of 13% of operating expenditures (actual of 16.6%). The City's property 
tax rate was reduced to $0.43219 cents per $100 of assessed value, a decrease of $0.01194 cents, or 2.7%. 

Major items funded in the General Fund for fiscal year 2006-07 are: 

Incremental increase Fire Department staffing (3.75 full-time equivalents) 
Increase in funding for street improvements 
Replacement of Fire Department vehicles 
Replacement of emergency services ambulance 
Increase in Police Department employees by 2 full-time equivalents 

Significant items in other funds: 

The Keller Pointe Recreation and Aquatic Center Fund - implement a 16% increase in annual pass fees to address 
increases in operating costs, and initiate an equipment replacement fund 

lnformation Services Fund - replace main router at Keller Town Hall, upgrade the storage area network, and 
provide for wireless Internet access capability at Keller Town Hall 

Library Special Revenue Fund -funding for a library efficiency and space study 

Keller Development Corporation - funding for soccer field fencing at Keller Sports Park and parking lot lighting 
improvements for The Keller Pointe Recreation and Aquatic Center 

Street Improvements Fund - provide funding of $550,000 from the 118'~ of one percent sales tax for street 
maintenance 

Keller Crime Control Prevention District - provide funding for vehicle and related equipment replacements, national 
accreditation. mobile cornouter svstem imorovements. UDOrade the FirelPolice comDuter aided dis~atch svstem. . . -  
and other improvements fiom theil8lh of one percent sales tax 

The City's strong financial position continues with an expanding property tax base, a growing retail base, and a 
competitive tax rate (the City's property tax rate for 2006-07 ranks the 5 lowest among 16-area cities). 

Requests for Information 

The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors, and creditors with general overview of 
the City's finances. If you have questions about this report, or need any additional information, please contact the 
Finance Department, P.O. Box 770, Keller, Texas 76244-0770, call (817) 743-4025, or e-mail at 
finance@citvofkeller.mm. 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

EXHIBIT A-I 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 

Cash 
lnvestments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 
Special assessments 
Internal balances 
Due from other governments 
Inventories 
Prepaid items 
Deferred charges 
Restricted assets: 

Cash 
lnvestments 

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation, where applicable): 
Lend 
Construction in progress 
Buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery end equipment 

Capacity rights (net of accumulated amortization) 
Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities and other payables 
Uneamed revenue 
Customer deposits 
Accrued interest payable 
Provision for litigation settlement 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more then one year 
Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in Capital Assets. Net of Related Debt 
Restricted For: 

Debt Service 
Capital Projects 

Unrestricted 
Total Net Assets 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Functions/Programs 
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

General government 
Community development 
Public safety 
Public works 
Recreation and leisure 
Non-departmenfal 
Interest on long-term debt 
Total Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Water and Wastewater Utility 
Drainage Utility 
Total Business-type Activities 
Total Primaly Government 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges for Grants and Grants and 
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions 

General Revenues: 
Propeity Taxes 
Sales Taxes 
Franchise Taxes 
Alcoholic Beverage Taxes 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 
Miscellaneous Income (Expense) 
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 

Transfers 
Total General Revenues and Transfers 
Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beginning 

Net Assets - Ending 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



EXHIBIT A-2 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncoilectibles): 

Taxes 
Accounts 
Interest 
Other 

Special assessments 
Intergovernmental 
Due from other funds 
Advance to other funds 
Inventories 
Prepaid items 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities and other payables 
Due to other funds 
Advance from other funds 
Customer deposits 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved Fund Balances 

Reserved for encumbrances 
Reserved for special uses 
Reserved for interfund advances 
Reserved for prepaid items 
Resewed for inventory 
Reserved for debt service 

Unreserved, reported in: 
General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 
Debt Service Funds 
Capital Projects Funds 

Total Fund Balances 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

EXHIBIT A-3 

Other Total 
General G.O. Debt Governmental Governmental 

Fund Service Funds Funds 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



EXHIBIT A-4 
CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NETASSETS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Total fund balances -governmental funds balance sheet 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets 
are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds. 
Property taxes receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 
Payabies for bond principal which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. 
Pavables for ca~ital leases which are not due in the current ~er iod are not reDorted in the funds. 
~a iab les  for bond interest which are not due in the current beriod are not reported in the funds. 
Payabies for compensated absences which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. 
Bond issue costs are deferred in the statement of activities. 
Court fines receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 
Ambulance receivables unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 
Assessments receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 

Net assets of governmental activities - statement of net assets 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

EXHIBIT A-5 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
General G.O. Debt 

Fund Service 
Revenues: 

Taxes 
Permits. licenses and fees 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Fines 
SpecIal assessments and Impact fees 
Donations 
lnterest income 
MisceNaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 
Community development 
Public safety 
Public works 
Recreation and leisure 
Non-departmental 

Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal 
lnterest and fiscal charges 
Bond issuance costs 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 2,259,109 (930,215) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 1,237,000 661,180 
Transfers out (1,624,684) - 
Debt issued .. - 
Refunding bonds issued .. -- 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent -- .. 

Total other financing sources (uses) (367,684) 661,180 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances, September 30 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
("SOA") are different because: 

EXHIBIT A-6 

Capital outlays are not reported as expenses in the SOA. 
The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the funds. 
Donations of capital assets increase net assets in the SOA but not in the funds. 
Certain property tax revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. 
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 
Bond issuance costs and similar items are amortized in the SOA but not in the funds. 
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest from beginning of period to end of period. 
Compensated absences are reported as the amount earned in the SOA but as the amount paid in the funds 
Certain ambulance receivables are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. 
Certain assessment revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. 
Revenues in the SOA for court tines not providing current financial resources are not reported in the funds. 
Proceeds of bonds do not provide revenue in the SOA, but are reported as current resources in the funds. 
Payments to refunding bond escrow agent are not an expense in SOA. 
Bond issuance costs payments are not an expense in SOA. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities - statement of activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF KELLER. TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NETASSETS 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Enterprise Enterprise 
Fund ~ u n d  

Water and 
Wastewater 

Total 
Enterprise 

Funds 
Drainage 

Utility Utility 
ASSETS 
Current Assets: 
Cash 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Taxes 
Accounts 
Interest 
Other 

Intergovernmental 
Due from other funds 
Advance to other funds 
Inventories 
Prepaid items 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Restricted assets: 

Cash 
Investments 
Total Restricted Assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Land 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Construction in progress 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Net Property, Plant and Equipment 

Capacity rights (net of accumulated amortization) 
Deferred charges 

Total Noncurrent Assets 
Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities and other payables 
Compensated absences payable 
Due to other funds 
Accrued interest payable 
Deferred revenue 
Customer deposits 
Cunent portion of certificates of obligation 
Current portion of general obligation bonds 
Current poriion of contractual obligations 

Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Certificates of obligation 
Contractual obligations 
General obligations 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES. AND CHANGES 

EXHIBIT A-8 

IN FUND NET ASSETS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Enterprise 
Fund 

Water & 
WNV Utility 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for services - wafer $ 14,598,191 
Charges for services - sewer 3,939,516 
Charges for services - drainage -- 
Tap and connection fees 170,023 
Intergovernmental 17,509 

Total Operating Revenues 18,725.239 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Personnel services 2,270.943 
Supplies and maintenance 616,923 
Services and other 1,869,552 
Wholesale waterpurchases 5,476,097 
Wastewater services contracted 1,276,245 
Depreciation and amofiization 2,290,678 

Total Operating Expenses 13,800,438 
Operating Income (Loss) 4,924,601 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Interest income 698,030 
Gain from disposal of assets - 

M~scellaneous income (expense) (5,147) 
Interest and fiscal charges (1,059,274) 

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) (366,391 ) 
Net Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions and Transfers 4,558,410 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS: 
Capital Contributions 3,250,635 
Transfers in 30.000 
Transfers out 

Total Capital Contributions and Transfers 
Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets, October 1 

Total Net Assets, September 30 

Enterprise 
Fund 

Drainage 
Utility 

Total 
Enterprise 

Funds 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Cash Flows from Opeating Activities: 
Cash received from customers and users 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments to employees for services 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities: 
Transfers to other funds 
Cash received from other funds 
Cash paid to other funds 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Proceeds received from debt issuance 
Acquisition or construction of capital assets 
Principal payments on debt 

EXHIBIT A-9 

Enterprise Funds 
Water & - -  - 

Wastewater Drainaoe 
Operations utis{ Totals 

Interest paid ( I  ,165,211) 4,823 (1,160,388) 
Net Cash Provided (Used) for Capital & Related Financing Activities (2,288,199) (30,010) (2,318,209) 

Cash Flows from lnvesting Activities: 
Purchase of investments 
Investment interest received 

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - beginning 

Cash and cash eauivalents - ending 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - ending 

Cash 
Investments classified as cash equivalents 

Restricted cash 
Restricted investments classified as cash equivalents 



Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

Provided by Operating Activities 
Depreciation and amortization 
Miscellaneous income (expense) 

(Increase) decrease in assets 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other governments 
Prepaid items 
Invento~y 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities and otherpayables 
Due to other governments 
Customer deposits 
Compensated absences 

Total Adjustments 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities 

Developer contributions of infrastructure 

Enterprise Funds 
Water & 

Wastewater Drainage 
Operations Utility Totals 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30,2006 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The City of Keller, Texas, was incorporated in 1955. The City operates under the Council-Manager form of 
government as adopted by a home rule charter approved November 16, 1955. The City provides a full range of 
municipal services including general government, planning & community development, public safety (police, fire, 
animal control, and emergency medical services), public works, recreation and leisure, and other. In addition, the 
City provides water and sewer service, and storm water drainage as proprietary functions of the City. 

The accounting policies of the City of Keller, Texas, conform to generally accepted accounting principles issued by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board which is the recognized financial accounting standard setting body 
for governmental entities. The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the City's financial statements. 

The City of Keller is a home rule municipality governed by an elected mayor and five member City Council who 
appoint a city manager. The City's (primary government) financial statements include its component units. The 
accompanying general purpose financial statements comply with the provisions of the GASB Statement No. 14, "The 
Financial Reporting Entity," in that the financial statements include all organizations, activities, functions and 
component units for which the City (the "primary government") is financially accountable. Financial accountability is 
defined as the appointment of a voting majority of a legally separate organization's governing body and either (1) the 
City's ability to impose its will over the organization, or (2) the potential that the organization will provide a financial 
benefit to or impose a financial burden on the City. 

Blended Component Units 

Keller Development Corporation IKDC] - The City created the Keller Development Corporation for the purpose of 
implementing its Parks Master Plan and appointed a seven member board of directors, four of whom are required to 
be members of the City Council. The remaining three members are residents of the City. All board members are 
appointed by the City Council. KDC is authorized to sell bonds or other forms of indebtedness. In the event of 
dissolution of KDC, the assets of KDC will be distributed to the City. KDC is blended as a governmental fund into the 
primary government. 

Since the KDC Board of Directors act primarily in an advisory role to the Keller City Council, who exercise the 
ultimate financial control over the recommendations of the KDC board, the financial information of KDC is blended as 
a governmental fund into the primary government. 

Keller Tax lncrement Finance Reinvestment Zone #1 ITIF) - The City created the Keller Tax lncrement Finance 
Reinvestment Zone #1 to encourage the accelerated development of the Keller Town Center area in the City. The 
12-member Board of Directors is comprised of five members of the Keller City Council, the Mayor of Keller, three 
members representing the Keller Independent School District, and one member appointed from the governing bodies 
of the three respective Tarrant County entities. The TIF was established through the cooperative efforts of the City 
of Keller, the Keller lndependent School District, Tarrant County, the Tarrant County College District and the Tarrant 
County Hospital District. These entities comprise all of the overlapping taxing entities within the City. Debt 
obligations issued and backed by the TIF are to be repaid from property tax levies, based on the incremental 
increase in the real property values from the base year (1998). 

Since the TIF Board of Directors acts primarily in an advisory role to the Keller City Council, who exercise the 
ultimate financial control over the recommendations of the TIF board, the financial information of the TIF is blended 
as a governmental fund into the primary government. 

Keller Crime Control Prevention District (KCCPD) - In accordance with Section 363 of the Texas Local Government 
Code, the City Council appointed a temporary KCCPD board, who then developed and proposed a two-year financial 
plan to the residents of the City for a public vote. In November 2001, the residents of the City, by referendum, 
approved an additional three-eighths of one percent (0.375%) sales and use tax to be used for public safety crime 
control and prevention programs, including public safety equipment, and improvements to public safety facilities. 
Following voter approval of KCCPD, a board of directors was officially appointed by the City Council, and the two- 
year budget was then adopted by the board and City Council. By statute, the life of KCCPD cannot exceed five years 
without re-authorization by another referendum. The additional sales tax became effective in April 2002. The tax 
was authorized for an initial period of five years. In May 2006, voters re-authorized the tax for an additional period of 
15 years. 

34 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30,2006 

Since the KCCPD board acts primarily in an advisory role to the Keller City Council, who exercises the ultimate 
financial control over the recommendations of the KCCPD board, the financial information for KCCPD is blended as 
a governmental fund into the primary government. 

Separate financial statements for the component units are not prepared. 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net 
assets) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most 
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which 
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type 
activities, which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and service charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are 
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or 
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other 
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual 
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes 
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and 
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and 
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be 
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only 
the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to 
accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available 
only when cash is received by the City. 

The City reports the following major governmentai funds: 

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. it accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The G. 0. Debt Service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and 
interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmentai funds. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The Water and Wastewater Operations and the Drainage Utility funds operate the water distribution system, the 
wastewater collection system and storm water control. 
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Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are 
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do 
not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have 
the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, 
subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. 
Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the City's water and 
wastewater function and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct 
costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or 
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special 
assessments, Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. 
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes, miscellaneous revenue, and interest income. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water and Sewer and 
Drainage Utility enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. These funds also recognize as 
operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. 
Operating expenses for the funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation 
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity 

1. Deposits and investments 

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

The City's investment policy is more restrictive than permitted by State statutes. The investment policy 
authorizes the City to invest in (1) obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, 
excluding mortgage-backed securities; (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and 
instrumentalities; (3) other obligations, the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed or 
insured by, or backed by the full faith and credit of, the State of Texas or the United States or their respective 
agencies and instrumentalities, excluding mortgage-backed securities; (4) collateralized certificates of deposit 
issued by state and national banks domiciled in this state that are (A) guaranteed or insured by the Federal 
Deposit lnsurance Corporation, or its successor; or the National Credit Union Share lnsurance fund, or its 
successor, (B) secured by obligations that are described by Section 2256.009(a) of the Texas Public Funds 
lnvestment Act, including mortgage-backed securities directly issued by a federal agency or instrumentality, but 
excluding those mortgage-backed securities of the nature described in Section 2256.009(b) of the Act, (C) 
secured in any other manner and amount provided by law for deposits of the City; or, (5) eligible local 
government investment pools which invest in instruments and follow practices allowed by current law as defined 
in Section 2256.016 of the Texas Public Funds lnvestment Act; (6) regulated no-load money market mutual 
funds that are (A) registered with and regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission; (B) having a 
dollar-weighted average portfolio of ninety (90) days or less; (C) the investment objectives include the 
maintenance of a stable net asset value of one dollar ($1.00) per share; and (D) the fund is continuously rated 
no lower than "AAA' or its equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service; and (7) 
repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, bankers' acceptances and commercial paper, to the 
extent they are contained in the portfolios of approved public funds investment pools in which the City invests. 

Investments maturing within one year of date of purchase are stated at cost or amortized cost; all other 
investments are stated at fair value which is based on quoted market prices. 

2. Receivables and payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lendinglborrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the 
fiscal year are referred to as either "due tolfrom other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or 
"advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances 
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between funds are reported as "due tolfrom other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as 
"internal balances." 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve 
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not 
expendable available financial resources. 

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Trade accounts receivable in excess of 
60 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for uncollectibles. 

Property taxes are levied on October 1 by the City based on the January 1 property values as assessed by the 
Tarrant Appraisal District. Taxes are due without penalty until January 31, of the next calendar year. After 
January 31 the City has an enforceable lien with respect to both real and personal property. Under state law, 
property taxes levied on real property constitute a perpetual lien on the real property which cannot be forgiven 
without specific approval of the State Legislature. Taxes applicable to personal property can be deemed 
uncollectibie by the City. 

3, Inventories and prepaid items 

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-inlfirst-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of governmental funds 
are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 

4. Restricted assets 

Restricted asserts include certain cash proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds because their use is limited 
by applicable bond covenants. Accumulated impact fees are restricted for debt service or construction of water 
or wastewater system. Assets are also restricted for payments of principal and interest due on certain water 
and wastewater debt. 

5. Capital assets 

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, and 
infrastructure assets (e.g., streets, sidewalks, bridges, underground structures and piping, roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), and construction in progress are reported in the applicable governmental or 
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Generally, capital assets are 
defined by the City as assets with an estimated useful life in excess of one year and an initial, individual cost of 
$10,000 - $20,000 for subclasses of real property and $5,000 - $10,000 for subclasses of personal property. 
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred 
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized 
value of the assets constructed. 

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated 
using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings and building improvements 20 to 40 years 
Improvements other than buildings 20 to 40 years 
water and sewer system infrastructure 20 to 40 years 
Storm drainaoe svstem infrastructure 20 to 40 vears 
Capacity righTs ' 

Heavy equipment 
40 years 
10 to 15 years 
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Fire trucks and ambulances 
Furniture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 
Police pursuit vehicles 
Other vehicles 

15 to 20 years 
5 to 10 years 
5 to 10 years 
3 years 
3 to 6 years 

6. Compensated absences 

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation pay benefits up to specified 
limits. Vacation benefits are accrued at 6.67, 10.00, or 13.34 hours per month for employees with less than 5, 
10, or more than 10 years of service, respectively. Non-exempt employees may accrue up to 40 hours while 
exempt employees may accrue up to 320 hours. Sick leave is accrued at 8.0 hours per month without limitation. 
Upon termination or retirement, any accumulated sick leave expires. Unused compensatory time for nonexempt 
employees is paid on termination. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they 
are matured, for example, unused reimbursable leave payable as a result of employee resignations and 
retirements. 

7. Long-term obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and 
other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance 
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method which approximates 
the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt 
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

8. Fund equity 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are 
not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. 
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. 

II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

Cash 

A. Deposits and investments 

In accordance with "GAS6 Statement No. 3, Deposits and Financial lnsfitutions," the City classifies its deposits as to 
custodial credit risk. At year end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits and cash on hand was $817,811 
(including $439,716 restricted) and the bank balance was $1,100,830. $100,000 of the bank balance was covered 
by federal deposit insurance and the remainder was covered by collateral pledged by the depository in the City's 
name and held by the depository's agent. 

Under a contractual agreement with Trinity River Authority, depository accounts are maintained by TRA for interest 
sinking, debt and construction reserves totaling $1,169,000 which are separately insured or secured by collateral 
pledged by TRA's depository. The City's liability for its share of TRA contract revenue bonds is reduced by this 
amount. 

Investments 

lnvestments are categorized to give an indication of the level of credit risk assumed by the City. At September 30, 
2006, all of the City's investments are classified as Category I investments (lowest risk category), which are defined 
as securities held by the City or its agent in the City's name. At year end the City's investments were: 
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Carrying Fair % of 
Description Amount Value Total (Cost) 

U.S. Agency Discount/Callable Notes $ 21,112,768 $ 21,358,012 57% 
Money Market Mutual Funds 337,956 337,956 1 % 
Government Sponsored Investment Pools 

TexPool 12,520,970 12,520,970 34% 
LOGIC 2,928,611 2,928,611 8% 

Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Weighted Average Maturity - Par Value 

3 - 30 days 
31 - 60 days 
61 - 90 days 
91 - 180days 

> 180 days 

Interest Rate Risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair value 
by limiting the weighted average maturity of its portfolio to less than three years. 

Credit Risk - The City's investment policy limits investments as described previously in Note I.D.1. 

Concentration of Credit Risk - With the exception of U.S. Government securities (loo%), as authorized, and 
authorized local government investment pools (up to 60%), no more than 50% of the total investment portfolio may 
be invested in any one security type or with a single financial institution. lnvestments in money market mutual funds 
are limited to 10% of the City's total portfolio. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. In the case of deposits this is the risk, that in the event of a bank failure, the City's 
deposits may not be returned to it. The City requires all deposits to be covered by Federal Depository Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) insurance andlor collateralized by qualified securities pledged by the City's depository in the 
City's name and held by the depository's agent. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments. For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the 
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of the outside party. 

The City is a member of two local government investment pools - TexPool and LOGIC. 

TexPool is an external investment pool operated by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts and is not SEC 
registered. The Texas lnterlocal Cooperation Act and the Texas Public Funds lnvestments Act provide for 
creation of public funds investment pools and permit eligible governmental entities to jointly invest their funds in 
authorized investments. The State Comptroller has established an advisory board composed both of 
participants in TexPool and of other persons who do not have a business relationship with TexPool. The 
Advisory Board members review the investment policy and management fee structure. TexPool uses amortized 
cost to report net assets and share prices since that amount approximates fair value. 

Local Government Investment Cooperative (LOGIC) is also an external investment pool governed by the Texas 
lnterlocal Cooperation Act and the Texas Public Funds lnvestments Act. It operates in a manner consistent with 
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the SEC's Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, to the extent such rule is applicable to its 
operations. Accordingly, LOGIC uses the amortized cost method permitted by SEC Rule 2a-7 to report net 
assets and share prices since that amount approximates fair value. The investment activities of LOGIC are 
administered by third party advisors. There is no regulatory oversight by the State of Texas over LOGIC. 

B. Receivables 

Receivables as of year-end for the City's individual major and nonmajor funds in the aggregate, including the 
applicable allowances for uncoliectible accounts, are as follows: 

Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds 
Water & 

G. 0. Debt Wastewater Drainage 
General Service Nonrnajor Total Operations utility Tdal 

Taxes receivable $ 723,149 5 60,917 $ - $ 784.066 $ 5.381 5 - $ 5,381 
Allowance for 
uncoliectible taxes (19,432) (8,854) (28,286) 

703.717 52,063 755,780 5,381 5,381 

Accounts receivable 976,727 15.194 991,921 2,885,982 101,949 2,987,931 
Allowance for 
uncollectible accounts (61 8.290) (61 8,290) (522,957) (58,931) (581,888) 

358,437 15,194 373,631 2,363,025 43,018 2,406.043 

Accrued interest 88,051 18,084 106,135 159,814 4,857 164,671 

Other receivables 104,524 33,351 607,471 745.346 18,124 7,650 25,774 

Total 5 1,254,729 $ 85,414 $ 640,749 $ 1,980,892 $ 2,546,344 $ 55,525 $ 2,601,869 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to 
be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in 
connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the 
various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows: 

Delinquent property taxes receivable (General Fund) 

Ambulance revenue receivable (General Fund) 

Municipal court fines receivable (General Fund) 

Membership dues (RecreationIAquatic Center Fund) 

Delinquent property taxes receivable (Debt Service Fund) 

Delinquent TIF taxes (Town Center TIF i&S Fund) 

Unavailable Unearned 

$ 137,457 5 

284,863 

64,889 

Assessments receivable not yet due (Roadway Impact Fee Fund) 250,000 

Assessments receivable not yet due (StreeVSidewalk Improvements Fund) 48,552 

Total deferredlunearned revenue for governmental funds $ 1,072,638 $ 591,728 
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C. Restricted assets 

Business-type activities: 

Restricted for debt service 
Restricted for water and wastewater system improvements 

D. Capital assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2006: 

Primary Government 

Reported Restated 
Balance Prior Period Balance Deletions & Completed Balance 
913012005 Adjustments 913012005 Additions Transfers Out Construction 9130M006 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 18,311,087 $ - $ 18,311,087 $ 560,267 $ - $ - $ 18,871,354 
Construction in progress 2,924,805 2,924,805 789,254 (34,520) (2,879,566) 799,973 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 21,235,892 21,235,892 1,349,521 (34,520) (2,879,566) 19,671,327 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Buildings 48,054,707 48,054,707 20,768 48,075,475 
Improvements other than buildings 145,211,696 145,211,696 4,330,616 2,879,566 152,421,878 
Machinery and equipment 8,604,815 95,345 8,700,160 505,333 (227,371) 8,978,122 

Total capital assets being depreciated 201,871,218 95,345 201,966,563 4,856,717 (227,371) 2,879,566 209,475,475 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings (5,226,066) (5,226,066) (1,650,814) (6,876,880) 
Improvements other than buildings (57,226,533) (57,226,533) (5,865,349) (63,091,882) 
Machinery and equipment (4,037,024) (89,829) (4,126,853) (1,215,830) 215,166 (5,127,517) 

Total accumulated depreciation (66,489,623) (89,829) (66,579,452) (8,731,993) 21 5,166 (75,096,279) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 135,381,595 5,516 135,387,111 (3,875,276) (12,205) 2,879,566 134,379,196 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $156,617,487 $ 5,516 $156,623,003 $ (2,525,755) $ $ - $154,050,523 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

General government $ 858,643 
Planning & community development 27,786 
Public safety 81 1,234 
Public works 5,211,675 
Recreation and leisure 1,822,655 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30,2006 

Restated Transfen and 
Balance Prior Period Balance Deletions & Completgl Balance 

9130EW5 AdjuStments 9130EW5 Additions Transfers Out Construdw 9130EW6 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTNITIES: 
Capital assets, n d  being depreciated: 

Land $ 1,122,492 $ - $ 1,122.492 $ 236 $ - $ - $ 1,122,730 
Consbuction in progress 5,257.155 - 5,257,155 3,885,713 - (9,018,307) 124,581 

Total capital assee not being depreciated 6,379,847 6,379.647 3,686,951 (9,016,307) 1,247,291 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
improvemene other than buildings 79,929,388 - 79,929,368 4,458,127 (152,621) 9,016,307 93,251,181 
Machinery and equipment 1,663,699 45.716 l.g(J9.615 314.645 (144,302) 2.079.958 

Total capitsi assets being depreiated 61,793,267 45,716 61,836,963 4,770,772 (296,923) 9,018,307 95,331,139 

L ~ S S  accumulated depreciation for: 
Improvements other than buildings (20,522,096) 2.101 (20,619,995) (3.W9.667) (23,529,662) 
Machinery and equipment (1.W2.643) (45,716) (1,016,359) (267,417) 45,716 (1,270,060) 

TOW accumulated depreciation (21,524,739) (43,615) (21,568,354) (3,277,0641 45,716 (24,789,722) 

Total capitd assets being depreciated. net 60,288,528 2,101 60,270,529 1,493,668 (251,207) 9,018,307 70,531,417 

Business-type anivities capital asseta, net $66,648,175 $ 2,101 I66.650.276 $5,379,639 $ (251,207) $ - $ 71,778,708 

Construction commitments 

The City has active construction projects as of September 30, 2006. The projects include land acquisition, street 
construction, park improvements, water system improvements, and sewer system improvements. 

Land acquisition, building construction, street and park improvements are being financed by bond proceeds, park 
development fees, combination tax and revenue certificates of obligation (general purposes) and self supporting 
combination tax and revenue certificates of obligation (KDC, and KCCPD). The commitment for water system 
improvements and sewer system improvements are being financed by self supporting bonds, combination tax and 
revenue certificates of obligation, and water and sewer impact fees. 

Sanitary sewer system improvements 
Fire department facilities expansion 
Keller-Smithfield Road playground activity node improvements 
Keiier/Southlake/Fort Worth water system improvements 
Pearson Lane 3 MG gallon ground storage 
Miscellaneous drainage system improvements 
Miscellaneous water system improvements 
Miscellaneous street improvements - general purpose 
North Tarrant Parkway road improvements 
Keller-Smithfieid 1 MG elevated storage water system improvements 

Spent to Remaining 
Date Commitment 

Total 
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E. interfund receivables, payables, and transfers 

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2006, is as follows: 

Due From Due To 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General Fund 

Debt Service Fund 

Nonmajor governmental funds 

Water & Wastewater Operations 

Drainage Utility 

The interfund balances above represent unsettled overdrafts of pooled cash which will be removed by rebalancing 
the funds share of pooled cash and investments. 

Advances Advances 
Receivable Payeble 

Debt Service Fund 

Nonmajor governmental funds 

Water and Wastewater Operations 

$162,348 is due, over two years, to the Water and Wastewater fund from the Debt Service fund for a loan passed 
through to the Equipment Replacement fund and used for acquisition of City vehicles and equipment. $28,513 is 
due, over three years, to the KDC fund from the Recreation/Aquatic Center fund for start-up costs. 

lnterfund transfers: 

Transfers From Transfers To 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General Fund 

Debt Service Fund 

Nonmajor governmental funds 

Water & Wastewater Operations 

Drainage Utility 

lnterfund transfers are used to pay an allocation of general and administrative services, provide funds for debt 
service, contribute toward the cost of capital projects, and for other operational purposes. 
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F. Long-term debt 

The City of Keller issues general obligation bonds, certificates of obligation bonds, contractual obligation bonds 
and notes to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. General obligation 
bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-type activities. These issues are direct obligations 
and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. 

General Debt Currently Outstanding: 

Average 
Original Year of Final Annual Interest Balance 

Purpose Amount Issue Maturity Payment Rate 9/30/2006 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 

General Obligation Bonds: 
City 

Improvements $ 1,150,000 1981 2020 $ 72,223 5.00% $ 725,000 
Refunding 2,297,976 1999 2020 152,777 3.75% - 5.00% 1,721,400 
Refunding 700,000 2002 2014 76,559 3.00% - 4.00% 470,000 
Refunding 11,125,000 2004 2017 874,235 3.00% - 4.00% 8,400,000 
Refunding 9,980,000 2005 2014 947,770 3.00% - 4.20% 9,910,000 

21,226,400 

Certificates of Obligation: 
City 

lmprovements 
lmprovements 
lmprovements 
lmprovements 
lmprovements 
lmprovements 
lmprovements 
lmprovements 

Keller TlRZ (TIF) 

lmprovements 
lmprovements 
lrnprovements 
Refunding 

Keller Development Corp. 
Improvements 
lmprovements 

Keller CCPD 
Improvements 

Revenue Bonds: 
Keller Development Corp. 

Refunding 

Less: bond issue discount/(premium) 
Less: deferred loss on refunding 

Total Governmental Activities Debt 90,814,165 
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Average 

Original Year of Final Annual Interest Balance 

Purpose Amount Issue Maturity Payment Rate 913012006 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITES DEBT 

General Obligation Bonds: 

City 

Refunding 3,222,024 

Refunding 5,360,000 

Refunding 440,000 

Refunding 3,390,000 

Less: bond issue discount/(premium) 
Less: deferred loss on refunding 

Certificates of Obligation: 

City 

Improvements 4,575,000 

Improvements 1 1,310,000 

Improvements 4,255,000 

Contractual Obligations: 

City 

Improvements 3,679,920 

Refunding 697,116 

Less: deferred loss on refunding 

Less: TRA accrued interest and cash reserves 

Total Business Type Activities Debt 

Total Long-Term Debt 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general debt: 

Due Fiscal 

Year Ending 

September 30, 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 
201 1 

2012 - 2016 

201 7 - 2021 

2022 - 2024 

Governmental Activities 

Principal Interest 

$ 6,483,987 $ 3,954,651 

5,484,395 3,661,875 

6,189,416 3,351,829 

6,312,743 3,087,813 

6,116,068 2,827,725 

32,587,522 10,184,673 

22,412,269 3,278,623 

5,065,000 256,141 

Business-type Activities 

Principal Interest 

$ 1,651,013 $ 1,263,622 

1,740,605 1,178,611 

1,540,584 1,107,318 

1,577,257 871,367 

1,623,932 807,365 

6,817,478 3,116,023 

6,352,731 1,683,738 

3,980,000 359,407 

Total 
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Revenue bond debt sewice requirements to maturity are as follows: 
Due Fiscal 

Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 
September 30. Principal Interest Principal Interest Total 

2007 $ 115,000 $ 35,048 $ 432,331 $ 109,335 $ 691,714 

Capital Lease Obligation 

The City acquired fire apparatus with a cost of $825,000 subject to a capital lease obligation. The scheduled 
remaining payments are shown below: 

Due Fiscal Scheduled 
Year Ending Annual 

September 30, Payment 

Less Interest (1 30,896) 

Changes In Long-Term Liabilities 

During the year ended September 30, 2006, the following changes occurred in general government long-term debt: 

September 30, September 30, Due Within 
Description 2005 Additions Retirements 2006 One Year 

Governmental activities: 
General obligation bonds $ 22,927,061 5 - $ (1,700,661) $ 21,226,400 $ 1,648,987 
Certificates of obligation 73,210,000 270,000 (4,055,000) 69,425,000 4,835,000 
Revenue bonds 1,035,000 890,000 (1,035,000) 890,000 115,000 
Deferred loss on refundino (1,453,3991 (1 7.2461 129,127 11,341,5181 (129,747) - , .  . . 
Bond premiumsldiscounts 677,274 2.743 (65,734) 61 4,283 123,814 

Total bonds payable 96,395,936 1,145,497 (6,727,268) 90,814,165 6,593,054 
Ca~ital lease oblisation 752.080 (83,266) 668,814 82,832 - 
Compensated absences 803,314 890,870 (788,109) 906,075 906,075 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30,2006 

September 30, September 30, Due Within 
Description 2005 Additions Retirements 2006 One Year 

Business-type activities 
General obligation bonds 
Certificates of obligation 
Deferred loss on refunding 
Bond premiums/discounts 

Total bonds payable 
Contractual Obligations 
Compensated absences 

For the governmental activities, claims and judgments and compensated absences are generally liquidated by the 
general fund. 

Advance and Current Refunding of Debt 

During the year ended September 30, 2006, the KDC issued new Series 2006 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds 
in the amount of $890,000 which proceeds were used to defease certain existing debt (Series 1992 Sales Tax 
Revenue Bonds). Total debt defeased was $935,000. The refunding reduced total debt service payments by 
$157,422 and resulted in an economic gain of $127,342. 

In previous years, the City has issued refunding bonds to provide resources to purchase U.S. Government, State 
and Local Government Series securities that were placed in irrevocable trusts for the purpose of generating 
resources for all future debt service payments of the refunded debt. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered 
to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the City's financial statements. At year end, the City had 
$33,880,000 of defeased debt outstanding. 

Conduit Debt Obligations 

Certain revenue bonds have been issued in the past to provide financial assistance to nonprofit and public entities 
for the acquisition and construction of educational and student housing facilities deemed to be in the public interest. 
The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying 
mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the entities served by 
the bonds. The Citv is not obligated in anv manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not 
reported as liabilities in the accompanying inancial statemeinti. As of September 30, 2006, there was one series of 
revenue bonds outstanding. The aggregate principal amount payable for the issues was $35,165,000. 

Ill. OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Risk management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; business 
interruption; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health benefits: and other claims of various 
nature. The City participates in the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (Pool) which provides 
protection for risks of loss. Premiums are paid to the Pool which retains the risk of loss beyond the City's policy 
deductibles. Any losses reported but unsettled or incurred and not reported, are believed to be insignificant to the 
City's general purpose financial statements. For the last three years, there have been no significant reductions of 
insurance coverage or insurance settlements in excess of insurance coverage. 

B. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by such agencies. Any 
disallowed claims, including amounts already collected may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The 
amounts, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although 
the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30,2006 

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, it 
is the opinion of the City's management that the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on 
the financial condition of the City. 

The City contracts for garbage disposal with a third party. Under the terms of the agreement the city bills and collects 
the residential billing and remits that amount to the contracting party. The contractor bills the commercial customers 
and remits a franchise fee to the City based on total revenues received from the contract. 

C. Employee retirement systems and pension plans 

The City participates in the Texas Municipal Retirement System 

Plan Description -The City provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through a nontraditional, joint 
contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), one of over 
811 administered by TMRS, an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. Each of the 811 
municipalities has an annlial, individual actuarial valuation performed. All assumptions for the December 31, 2005 
valuations are contained in the 2005 TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be obtained by 
writing to P.O. Box 149153, Austin, Texas, 78714-9153. 

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, and the City-financed 
monetary credits, with interest. At the date the plan began, the City granted monetary credits for service rendered 
before the plan began of a theoretical amount equal to two times what would have been contributed by the 
employee, with interest, prior to establishment of the plan. Monetary credits for service since the plan began are a 
percent (100%) of the employee's accumulated contributions. In addition, the City can grant as oflen as annually 
another type of monetary credit referred to as an updated service credit which is a theoretical amount which, when 
added to the employee's accumulated contributions and the monetary credits for service since the plan began, would 
be the total monetary credits and employee contributions accumulated with interest if the current employee 
contribution rate and City matching percent had always been in existence and if the employee's salary had always 
been the average of his salary in the last three years that are one year before the effective date. At retirement, the 
benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's accumulated contributions with interest and the employer- 
financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. 

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes 
governing TMRS and within the actuarial constraints also in the statutes. Plan provisions for the City were as 
follows: 

Deposit Rate: 

Matching Ratio (Employer to Employee): 

A Member is Vested After: 

Members can retire at certain ages, based on the 
years of service with the Employer. 

The Sewice Retirement Eligibility for the Employer is: 

2-1 

5 years 

5 yearslage 60 
20 yearslany age 

Contributions - Under the state law governing TMRS, the actuary annually determines the City contribution rate. The 
rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service contribution rate, both of which are calculated 
to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate finances the currently accruing 
monetary credits due to the City matching percent, which are the obligation of the City as of an employee's 
retirement date, not at the time the employee's contributions are made. The normal cost contribution rate is the 
actuarially determined percent of payroll necessary to satisfy the obligation of the City to each employee at the time 
hislher retirement becomes effective. The prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (over funded) 
actuarial liability (asset) over the remainder of the plan's 25-year amortization period. The unit credit actuarial cost 
method is used for determining the City contribution rate. Both the empioyees and the City make contributions 
monthly. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year 
delay between the actuarial valuation that is the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into 
effect, i.e. December 31, 2005 valuation is effective for rates beginning January 2007. 
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CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30,2006 

Schedule of Actuarial Liabilities and Funding Progress 

Actuarial Valuation Date 12/31/2005 1213112004 12131 12003 

Actuarial Value of Assets (A) $ 18,778,912 $ 16,105,331 $ 13,308,164 
Actuarial Accrued Liability (B) $ 23,965,739 $ 20,883,936 5 19,410,488 

Percentage Funded ( C) = (A)/@) 78.4% 77.1% 68.6% 
Unfunded (Over-funded) Actuarial Accrued Liability 

(D)=(B)-(A)) $ 5,186,827 $ 4,778,605 5 6,102,324 

Annual Covered Payroll (E) $ 12,094,482 5 11,556,285 $ 10,465,624 

UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll (D)I(E) 42.9% 41.4% 58.3% 

Net Pension Obligation (NPO) at the Beginning of 
the Period $ - $ - $ 
Annual Pension Cost: 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) (F) $ 1,553,639 5 1,495,114 $ 1,265,190 

Contributions Made (F) $ 1,553,639 $ 1,495,114 $ 1,265,190 

NPO at the End of the Period 

Actuarial Cost Method 
Amoltization Method 

Remaining Amortization Period 

Asset Vdution Method 

Investment Rate of Return 

Projected Salary Increases 
Includes Inflation At 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments 

Actuarial Assumptions 

Unit Credit 

Level Percent of Payroll 

25 Years - Open Period 
Amortized Cost 

(to Accurately reflect the requirements of 

GAS0 statement No. 25 paragraphs 36e and 138) 
7% 

None 

3.5% 
None 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIALSTATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30,2006 

D. Restatement of Prior Period Financial Statements 

Prior year financial statements have been restated as follows: 

As Reported As Restated 
09/30/05 Change 09130105 

Government Activities 
Net assets 

Miscellaneous adjustments 

Business Activities 
Net assets 

Miscellaneous adjustments 

General Fund 
Fund balance 

To accrue compensated absences at government-wide level 

Special Revenue Funds 
Keller Development Fund 

Fund balance 

Miscellaneous adjustments 

Municipal Court Fund 
Fund balance 

Record Teen Court fees in Teen Court Fund 

TeenCourtFund 
Fund balance 

Record Teen Court fees and miscellaneous revenue in Teen Court Fund 

Information Services Fund 
Fund balance 

To accrue compensated absences at government-wide level 

RecreationIAquatic Center Fund 
Fund balance $ (392,423) $ 

To accrue compensated absences at government-wide level 

Capital Project Funds 
Equipment Replacement Fund 

Fund balance 

To reverse effect of accrual made twice 
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CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
GENERAL FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

EXHIBIT B-I 
Page I of 5 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final Actual 

Revenues: 
Taxes 

Ad valorem tax, penalty & interest 
Sales tax 
Mixed beverage tax 
Franchise tax 

Total taxes 
Permits, licenses and fees 
lntergovernmantal 
Charges for services 
Fines 
Donations 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General Government 
Administration 

Personnel services 
Supplies and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Administration 

Old Town Keller 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Old Town Keller 

Town Hall Operations and Maintenance 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Town Hall Operations and Maintenance 

Mayor/Council 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Mayor/Council 

Finance and Accounting 
Administration 

Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Administration 

Tax 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Tax 
Total Finance and Accounting 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
GENERAL FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2006 

EXHIBIT B-1 
Page 2 of 5 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final Actual 

Municipal Court 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Municipal Court 

Human Resources 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Human Resources 

Total General Government 

Community Development 
Administration 

Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Administration 

Building and Construction Services 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Building and Construction Services 
Total Community Development 

Public Safety 
Police Department 

Administration 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Administration 

Operations 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Operations 

Publrc Safety Dlspatch 
Personnel servrces 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Public Safety Dispatch 

Animal Control 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Animal Control 
Total Police Department 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
GENERAL FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Fire Department 
Administration 

Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Administration 

Operations 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Operations 

Emergency Medical Services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Emergency Medical Services 

Emergency Management 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Emergency Management 
Total Fire Department 

Total Public Safety 

Public Works 
Administration 

Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Administration 

Engineering and Inspections 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Engineering and Inspections 

Street Maintenance 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Street Maintenance 

Street Lighting 
Services and other 

Total Street Lighting 

EXHIBIT 6-1 
Page 3 of 5 

Variance with 
Final Budaet 

Budgeted Amounts positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Total Public Works 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
GENERAL FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2006 

Recreation and Leisure 
Library 

Personnel services 
Operations end maintenence 
Services and other 

Total Library 

Parks and Recreation 
Parks and Recreation Administration 

Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Parks and Recreation Administ 

Park Maintenence 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Park Maintenance 

Recreation Programs 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenence 
Services and other 

Total Recreation Programs 

Senior Citizen Center 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Senior Citizen Center 

Sports Park Maintenance 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Sports Park Maintenance 

Town Center Maintenance 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Town Center Maintenance 

Total Parks and Recreation 

Total Recreation and Leisure 

ration 

EXHIBIT 6-1 
Page 4 of 5 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive 
Original Final Actual - (Negative) 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
GENERAL FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2006 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Budgeted Amounts positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

$ 215,280 $ 325,235 $ 250,866 $ 74.369 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

EXHIBIT 6-1 
Page 5 of 5 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (1,241,660) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances. September 30 

Variance with 
Final Budaet 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Year Ended September 30,2006 
(Unaudited) 

Budgets are adopted in accordance with GAAP for Special Revenue Funds (excepting the Public Safety fund), the Debt 
Service funds, and certain Capital Project funds (Park Development, Street Improvements, and Equipment Replacement 
funds). The remaining capital projects funds are budgeted on individual project length which may occur over multiple years. 
Budget schedules for nonrnajor special revenue funds, debt service funds, and annually budgeted capital projects funds are 
included in the "Other Supplementary Information" subsection of the City's CAFR. 

Expenditures in excess of appropriations - The following governmental funds had expenditures in excess of appropriations: 

Special Revenue Funds: 
Keller Development Corporation 5 80,682 
Library 3,752 
Public Arts 14,821 
Crime Control Prevention District 442 

Fund Deficits - The RecreationIAquatic Center special revenue fund had a deficit of $385,178 which will be removed by future 
net revenues. The Parks Capital Project fund had a deficit of $182,481 which will be removed with a transfer. 



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL NONMAJOR FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
particular purposes. 

Keller Development Corporation Fund - to  account for the collection of sales and use taxes for the payment of bonds 
or other forms of indebtedness to finance the cost of Keller parks. 

Library Fund - to  account for public donations and revenues designated for Library improvements. 

Recreation Fund - to  account for resources derived from donations or user charges which are specifically designated 
for recreation programs or special events. 

Municipal Court Fund - to account for technology and building security fees collected from Municipal Court Citations. 
Expenditures from these fees are specifically designated by State law. 

Public Safety Fund - to account for revenues derived from forfeiture and seizure of assets resulting from illegal 
narcotic activity. Expenditures are restricted for the police department to be used in illegal narcotic enforcement. 

Joint Teen Court Fund - t o  account for resources derived from grants and other governmental revenues which are 
specifically designated for the operation of a regional teen court program. 

Public Arts Fund - to account for resources specifically designated for the acquisition and promotion of public art. 

. Crime Control Prevention District - to account for collection of sales and use taxes, in accordance with Section 363 
of the Texas Local Government Code, to be used for public safety crime control and prevention programs. 

Information Services Fund - to account for resources transferred from the General Fund and Water and Sewer Fund 
and communication tower lease income used to operate a City-wide information systems and information technology 
program. 

. Recreation/Aquatic Center - to account for resources derived from user fees and other revenues to be used to fund 
the operationof a recreation and aquatic facility. 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of, general obligation principal and 
interest, except for those certificates of obligation serviced by the Enterprise Fund. 

An ad valorem tax is levied and allocated annually to the debt service fund in an amount sufficient to service the debt 
payment. 

General Obligation Debt Service Fund - t o  account for accumulation of property tax revenue to pay principal and 
interest due on general obligation debt. 

Tax increment Financing Zone I&S Fund - to account for accumulation of incremental property taxes from within the 
zone for payment of TIF debt. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for all resources used for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities 
other than those financed by proprietary funds. 

. Town Center TIF District Fund - to account for construction financed with proceeds from tax increment debt. 

Roadway Impact Fees Fund - to account for revenues that are restricted for roadway improvements. Authorized 
expenditures include improvements and engineering. 

Park Development Fund - to account for resources received primarily from park development fees and expenditures 
to specific park improvements. 



StreeVSidewalk Improvement Fund - to account for revenues that are restricted for street and sidewalk 
improvements. Authorized expenditures include improvements and engineering. 

Equipment Replacement Fund - to account for capital equipment acquisitions that are financed by either 
intragovernmental transfers, short-term debt (debt maturing in five years or less), or a combination of both. 

Parks Capital Project Fund - to account for acquisition or construction of capital assets. 

Capital Projects Fund - to account for acquisition or construction of capital assets. 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Accounts 
Interest 
Other 

Special assessments 
Intergovernmental 
Due from other funds 
Advance to other funds 
Prepaid items 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities and other payables 
Due to other funds 
Advance from other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved Fund Balances 

Reserved for encumbrances 
Reserved for special uses 
Reserved for interfund advances 
Reserved for prepaid items 
Reserved for debt service 

Unrese~ed, reported in: 
Special Revenue Funds 
Debt Service Funds 
Capital Projects Funds 

Total Fund Balances 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Debt 
Service 
Fund 

Special Capital 

EXHIBIT C-I 

Total 
Nonrnajor 

Governmental 
~evenue Town Center projects Funds (See 

Funds TIF #1 Funds Exhibit A-3) 



EXHIBIT C-2 

CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2006 Debt 

Service 
Fund 

S~ecial Caoital 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
~ i v e n u e  Town Center Projects Funds (See 

Funds TIF #I Funds Exhibit A-5) 
Revenues: 

Taxes 
Permits, licenses and fees 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Fines 
Special assessments and impact fees 
Donations 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Recreation and leisure 

Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Bond issuance costs 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Debt issued 
Refunding bonds issued 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances. September 30 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Keller 
Development 
Corporation Recreation 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Accounts 
Interest 

lntergovemmental 
Due from other funds 
Advance to other funds 
Prepaid items 

Total Assets 

LiABlLlTlES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities and otherpayables 
Due to other funds 
Advance from other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Resewed Fund Balances 

Reserved for encumbrances 
Reserved for special uses 
Reserved for interfund advances 
Reserved for prepaid items 
Reserved for debt service 

UnreSe~ed, reported in: 
Special Revenue Funds 

Total Fund Balances 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 
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Municipal 
Court 

Public 
Safety 

Joint 
Teen 
court 

Public 
Arts 

Crime Control 
Prevention 

District 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Accounts 
Interest 

Intergovernmental 
Due from other funds 
Advance to other funds 
Prepaid items 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities and otherpayables 
Due to other funds 
Advance from other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved Fund Balances 

Reserved for encumbrances 
Reserved for special uses 
Reserved for interfund advances 
Reserved for prepaid items 
Reserved for debt service 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Special Revenue Funds 

Total Fund Balances 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Information 
Services 

Total 
Nonmajor 
Special 

Revenue 
Recreation1 Funds (See 

Aquatic Center Exhibit C-I) 

EXHIBIT C-3 

Page 2 of 2 
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CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Fines 
Donations 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Recreation and leisure 

Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Bond issuance costs 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Refunding bonds issued 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances (deficit), October 1 

Fund balances (deficit), September 30 

Keller 
Development 
Corporation Recreation 
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Public 
Safety 

Joint 
Teen 
Court 

Public 
Arts 

Crime Control 
Prevention 

District 
Municipal 

Court 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

EXHIBIT C-4 

Page 2 of 2 

Total 
Nonmajor 
Special 

Revenue 
Funds (See 
Exhibit C-2) 

Information Recreation1 
Aquatic Center Services 

$ -- 
.. 
.. 
.. 

-- 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Fines 
Donations 
Interest income 
Miscel lane~u~ 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Recreation and leisure 

Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal 
lnterest and fiscal charges 
Bond issuance costs 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Refunding bonds issued 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances (deficit). October 1 

Fund balances (deficit). September 30 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
KELLER DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

EXHIBIT C-5 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive , 

Original Final Actual (Negative) 
Revenues: 

Sales tax 

 ona at ions 
lnterest income 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Recreation and Leisure 
Parks and Recreation 

Parks and Recreation Administration 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Parks and Recreation Administration 

Total Recreation and Leisure 

Capital outlay 

Debt service: 
Principal 
lnterest and fiscal charges 
Bond issue costs 
Total Debt Service 

Total expenditures 1,605,970 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 3,910 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out 
Refunding bonds issued 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances, September 30 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
LIBRARY FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Donations 
Interest income 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Recreation and Leisure 
Library 

Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Library 

Library Grants 
Operations and maintenance 

Total Library Grants 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances, September 30 

EXHIBIT C-6 

'Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
RECREATION FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Fines 
Donations 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Recreation League/Programs 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Recreation League/Programs 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances, September 30 

EXHIBIT C-7 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
MUNICIPAL COURTFUND 

EXHIBIT C-8 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Revenues: 
Fines 
Interest income 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General Government 
Municipal Court - Building Security 

Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Municipal Court - Building Security 

Municipal Court - Technology 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Municipal Court - Technology 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances, September 30 

Budgeted Amounts positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
JOINT TEEN COURTFUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Revenues: 

Fines 
Interest income 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General Government 
Teen Court 

Personnel serv~ces 
Operations and maintenance 
Services end other 

Total Teen Court 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances. September 30 

EXHIBIT C-9 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
PUBLIC ARTS FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Revenues: 
Donations 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
current: 

General Government 
Administration 

Operations and maintenance 
Sewices and other 

Total Administration 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances. September 30 

EXHIBIT C-10 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
CRIME CONTROL PREVENTION DISTRICT FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Revenues: 
Sales tax 
Total taxes 
lnterest income 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Public Safety 
Police Department 

Administration 
Services and other 

Total Administration 
Total Police Department 

Total Public Safety 

Capital outlay 

Debt service: 
principal 
lnterest and fiscal charges 
Total Debt Service 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances, September 30 

EXHIBIT C-11 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
INFORMATION SERVICES FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

EXHIBIT C-I2 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts ~ositiv; 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

lnformation Services - lnformation 
Administration 

Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total lnformation Services - lnformation 

lnformation Services - Geographic 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total lnformation Services - Geographic 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances. October 1 

Fund balances, September 30 



CITY OF KELLER. TEXAS EXHIBIT C-13 
RECREA TIOWAQUA TIC CENTER FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2006 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Donations 
interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Recreation and Leisure 
Recreation Aquatic Center - Administration 

Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Recreation Aquatic Center - Administration 

Recreation Aquatic Center - Aquatics 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Recreation Aquatic Center - Aquatics 

Recreation Aouatic Center - Fitness Proorams " 

Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
~krvices and other 

Total Recreation Aquatic Center - Fitness Programs 

Recreation Aquatic Center - Recreation Programs 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Recreation Aquatic Center - Recreation Programs 

Recreation Aquatic Center - Facility Maintenance 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Recreation Aquatic Center - Recreation Programs 

Recreation Aquatic Center - Customer Service/Concessions 
Personnel services 
Operations and maintenance 
Services and other 

Total Rec. Aquatic Center - Customer ServiceLoncessions 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances. October 1 

Fund balances. September 30 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
GO. DEBT SERVICE FUND 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem tax, penalty & interest 
Special assessments and impact fees 
Interest income 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Total Debt Service 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances, September 30 

EXHIBIT C-14 

Variance with 
Final Budoet 

Budgeted Amounts positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
TOWN CENTER TIF #I I&S FUND 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem tax, penalty & interest 
lnterest income 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Debt service: 

Principal 
lnterest and fiscal charges 
Total Debt Service 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Total expenditures 2,054,610 2,047,990 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (355,095) 122,242 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances, September 30 

EXHIBIT C-15 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

positive 
Actual (Negative) 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Interest 
Other 

Special assessments 
Intergovernmental 
Due from other funds 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities and other payables 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances (Deficits): 
Reserved Fund Balances 

Resewed for encumbrances 
Reserved for special uses 

Unreserved 
Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Capital 
Projects 

TIF #I 
Capital 
Projects 

Roadway 
Impact Fee 



EXHIBIT C-16 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Capital 
Projects 

Funds (See 
Exhibit C-1) 

Park 
Development 

Fee 

Street1 
Sidewalk 

Improvements 
Equipment 

Replacement 

Parks 
Capital 

Improvements 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2006 

TIF #I 
Capital 
Projects 

Roadway 
Impact Fee projects 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Permits, licenses and fees 
Special assessments and impact fees 
Donations 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Public works 
Recreation and leisure 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (1,978,959) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Debt issued 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances (deficits), October 1 

Fund balances (deficits), September 30 



EXHIBIT C-17 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Capital 
Projects 

Funds (See 
Exhibit C-2) 

t 469,856 

46.642 
1,212,652 

35,000 
356,882 
132,591 

2,253,623 

Park 
Development 

Fee 

Streetl 
Sidewalk 

lmprovements 

Parks 
Capital 

lmprovements 
Equipment 

Replacement 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
PARK DEVELOPMENT FEE CIP FUND 
CAP1 TAL PROJECTS FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Revenues: 
Permits, licenses and fees 
Interest income 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Recreation and Leisure 
Parks and Recreation Administration 

Services and other 
Total Parks and Recreation Administration 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances, September 30 

EXHIBIT C-18 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
STREET/SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS FUND 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2006 

Revenues: 
Sales tax 
Special assessments and impact fees 
Interest income 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Public Works 
Street /Sidewalk Improvements 

Services end other 
Total Street/Sidewalk Improvements 
Total Public Works 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (123,950) 

Net change in fund balances 

EXHIBIT C-19 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out (30,000) 
Total other financing sources (uses) (30,000) 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances, September 30 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Public Safety 
Fire Department 

Administration 
Services and other 

Total Administration 

Total Public Safety 

Budgeted Amounts positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Debt issued 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Variance with 
Final Budset 

Capital outlay 270,200 

Total expenditures 270,200 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (153,630) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Fund balances, September 30 

EXHIBIT C-20 



ST
A

T
IST

IC
A

L
 SE

C
T

IO
N

 



STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the City of Keller, Texas' comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information 
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health. 

Contents Page 

Financial Trends 9 1 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 97 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the facfors affecting the City's 
ability to generate its property and sales taxes. 

Debt Capacity 106 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's 
current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand 
how the City's financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and 
with other governments. 

Operating lnformation 

These schedules contain information about the City's operations and resources to help the 
reader understand how the City's financial information relates to the services the City provides 
and the activities it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City began implementing GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 
2003. The City completed infrastructure transition in 2005; schedules presenting government-wide information 
include information beginning that year. 
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CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT 
LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS 
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 
(UNAUDITED) 

Fiscal Year 
2003 2004 2005 2006 

Governmental Activities 
lnvested in Capital Assets, 

Net of Related Debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Governmental Activities Net Assets 

Business-type Activities 
lnvested in Capital Assets, 

Net of Related Debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Business-type Activities Net Assets 

Primary Government 
lnvested in Capital Assets, 

Net of Related Debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Primary Government Net Assets 

Note: 
The city began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003 
This information is presented using the accrual basis of accounting. 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
EXPENSES, PROGRAM REVENUES, AND NET (EXPENSE)/REVENUE 
LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS 
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 
(UNAUDITED) 

Expenses 
Governmental Activities: 

General government 
Planning & community development 
Public safety 
Public works 
Recreation and leisure 
Non-departmental 
Amortization 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 

Total Governmental Activities Expenses 

Business-type Activities 
Water &wastewater 
Drainage utility 

Total Business-type Activities Expenses 
Total Primary Government Expenses 

Fiscal Year 
2004 

Program Revenues 
Governmental Activities: 

Charges for Services: 
Other public works $ 310,608 
Parks and recreation 333,446 
Other activities 3,943,153 

Operating Grants and Contributions 8,321 
Capital Grants and Contributions 46,497 

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues $ 4,642,025 

Business-tv~e Activities: 
charg& for Services: 

Water and wastewater ; 12,122,526 
Drainage 652,065 

Operating Grants and Contributions -- 
Capital Grants and Contributions 3,347,187 

Total Business-type Activities Program Revenues 16,121,776 
Total Primary Government Program Revenues $ 20,763,803 

Net (Expense)lRevenue 
Governmental Activities 
Business-type Activities 
Total Primary Government Net Expense 

Fiscal Year 
2005 

Note: 
The city began to report accrual Information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003. 







CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 
(UNAUDITED) 

Fiscal Year 
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

General Fund 

Reserved 
Unreserved 

Total General Fund 

All Other Governmental Funds 

Reserved $ 2,708,221 $ 669,979 $ 3,305,253 $ 5,192,125 $ 5,192,126 $ 3,037,386 $ 16,214,013 $ 7,654,181 $ 3,967,972 $ 4,003.778 
Debt Service Funds 105,690 410,780 1.014.500 703,466 703,467 1,102,526 -. - .. 1,064,520 

Unreserved, Reported In: 
Special Revenue Funds 564,559 562,351 620.349 213,134 213,134 382,768 5,277,916 4,061,253 1,782,152 1,835,923 
Capital Projects Funds 6,319,344 6,238,123 8.360.982 8,971,581 8,971.579 12,467,939 5,086,428 4,721,951 6.223.728 4,541,543 

Total All Other Governmental Funds $ 9,697,814 $ 7,881,233 $ 13,301,084 $ 15,080,306 $ 15,080.306 $ 16,990,619 $ 26,578,357 $ 16,437,385 $ 11,973,852 $ 11,445.764 





CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 
(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE D-6 

Fiscal Property Sales & Use Franchise Mixed Beverage 
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Total 

Percent 
Change 
1997-2006 29.0% 11.9% 

(1) Percent Change 2004-2006 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

Total Estimated Taxable Assessed 
Commercial Undeveloped Less: Total Taxable Direct Actual Value as a 

Fiscal Residential & Industrial Vacant Tax-Exempt Assessed Tax Taxable Percentage of 
Year Property Property Property Property Value Rate Value Actual Taxable Value 

(1) Not available 

Sources: 
1997 through 1998, City documents. 1999 - 2006 - Tarrant Appraisal District 

Beginning with fiscal year 2006, Tax-Exempt Property includes exempt values from over-65 and disabled tax ceilings. 

Note:The Texas Property Tax Code, under Sec. 25.18, requires each appraisal office to implement a plan to update appraised values for real property at least once 
every three years. Tarrant Appraisal District's current policy is to conduct a general reappraisal of real and business personal property value annually, meaning that a 
property's appraised value is established and reviewed for equality and uniformity each year. The district conducts an onsite field review of real property in a portion 
of the county annually as part of a reappraisal cycle. Tax rates are per $100 of assessed value. 



TABLE D-8 

CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

City Direct Rates - 
General 

Obligation Total Keller 
Fiscal Basic Debt Direct School 
Year Rate Service Rate District 

Overlapping Rates 
Tarrant Tarrant 
County County 
Hospital Hospital 
District District 

Total Direct & 
Tarrant Overlapping 
County Tax Rates 

Note: Rates are per $100 valuation 

Source: Respective taxing entities. 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS 
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
(UNAUDITED) 

Taxpayer 

PR Town Center LP 
KTC Seniors LTD 
GTE Southwest Inc 
TXU Electric Delivery 
Regency Centers LP 
Lowe's Home Centers 
PR Keller Partners LP 
Home Depot USA 
Margaux Keller Dev LTD 
Keller Senior Community 
The Kroger Company 
Sentry Financial 
General Telephone 
Perry Homes JV 
Resolution Trust 
Tri-County Electric 
Rene Floren Trustee 
Ensearch Corp 
Centex Real Estate 

Total 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value 

$ 22,113,508 
16,729,356 
16,666,979 
15,657,572 
15,641,552 
14,224.313 
14,222,582 
12,165.349 
70,508,539 
9,308.030 

Rank 

TABLE D-9 

1997 
Percentage Percentage 
of Total City of Total City 

Taxable Taxable Taxable 
Assessed Assessed Assessed 

Value Value Rank Value 

Source: Tarrant County Appraisal District 



TABLE D-10 

CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

Collected Within the 
Taxes Levied 

for the 
Fiscal Year 

Collections 
In Subsequent 

Years -- 

Fiscal Year of the Levy 
Percentage 

Total Collections to Date 
Percentage Fiscal 

Year Amount of Levy Amount of Levy 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
TAXABLE SALES BY  CATEGORY 
U S T  TEN CALENDAR YEARS (1) 
(UNAUDITED) 

Agriculture 
Construction 
Transportation, Communications 
Wholesale Trade 
Retail Trade 
Service industry 
Finance 
Manufacturing 
Other 

Total 

Direct Sales Tax Rate 

Calendar Year 
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 

Source: Information provided by State Comptrolleh Office. Retail saies information is not available on a fiscal-year basis. 

Note: Retail saies information is not available on a fiscal-year basis 

(1) Sales tax data files are updated five to six months after the close of a quarter. 2006 allocated totals represent two quarters only. 





CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

Fiscal 
Year 

Notes: 

State of 
Texas 

6.25% 

6.25% 

6.25% 

6.25% 

6.25% 

6.25% 

6.25% 

6.25% 

6.25% 

6.25% 

(1) Effective 1992 
(2) Effective 2002 
(3) Effective 2004 

Keller 
Direct Rate 

1 .OO% 

1 .OO% 

1 .OO% 

1 .OO% 

1 .OO% 

1 .OO% 

1 .OO% 

1 .OO% 

1 .OO% 

1 .OO% 

Keller 
Development 

Corporation (1) 

0.50% 

0.50% 

0.50% 

0.50% 

0.50% 

0.50% 

0.50% 

0.50% 

0.50% 

0.50% 

Keller Keller 
Crime Control Street 

District (2) Maintenance (3) 

TABLE D-12 

Totals 

7.75% 

7.75% 

7.75% 

7.75% 

7.75% 

7.75% 

8.13% 

8.25% 

8.25% 

8.25% 





CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
RA TlOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBTBY TYPE 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

General Bonded Debt 

General 
Fiscal Obligation Certificates of 
Year Bonds Obligation 

KDC 
Revenue 

Bonds Other 

Business-type Activities .. 

General 
Fiscal Obligation Certificates of Revenue 
Year Bonds Obligation Bonds Other 
- 

Total 
Primary 

Government 

Percentage 
of Personal 

Income 
Per 

Capita 
- 

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE D-15 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Net General 

Bonded 
Debt 

Outstanding 

Percentage of 
Actual Taxable 

Value of 
Property - 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds 

Less: Amounts 
Certificates of Available in Debt 

Obligation Selvice Fund 

Less Self 
Supporting 

Debt 
Fiscal 
Year 

Per 
Capita 

1,290 

Total 

$ 28,585,788 

27,640,454 

36,382,501 

42,909,835 

66,852,964 

73,345.034 

95,755,933 

99,359,827 

95,359,403 

90,142,778 



CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTlVl TIES DEBT 
(UNAUDITED) 

Debt Repaid With Properly Taxes 

Keller Independent School District 
Tarrant County General Obligation Debt 

Other Debt 
Tarrant County Hospital District 
Tarrant County Junior College District 

Subtotal, Overlapping Debt 

City of Keller Direct Debt 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 

Estimated 
Debt Percentage 

Outstanding Applicable 

TABLE D-16 

Estimated 
Share of 

Direct and 
Overlapping 

Debt 

Source: Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit. 



TABLE D-I7 

CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

Fiscal Year 
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

Maximum allowable tax rate 

Adopted tax rate 0.48879 0.47998 0.45800 0.45300 0.44300 0.43800 0.43800 0.43800 0.4441 3 0.44413 

Additional rate available 2.01121 2.02002 2.04200 2.04700 2.05700 2.06200 2.06200 2.06200 2.05587 2.05587 

Additionaltaxlevyavailable(debtmargin) 17,263,865 19.605.224 22,944,592 27,334,586 31,968,923 38.403.588 45,372,135 46,718,343 52,623,315 57,579.506 

Tolal het Debt Applicable to the -!mil 
As a Percentage of Den1 -!mlI 

As a home rule city, the City of Keller is not legally limited by law in the amount of debt it may issue. 
The City's Charter Section 8.16.. states: 

The City Council shall have the power under the provisions of state law to levy, 
assess and collect an annual tax upon taxable property within the City, the tax 
not to exceed the rate as provided for by state law governing cities with a POpUlatiOn 
in excess of five thousand (5,000) inhabitants. 

Article II, Section 5 of the State of Texas Constitution states in part: 

... but no tax for any purpose shall ever be lawful for any one year, which shall 
exceed two and one-half percent of the taxable property of such city. 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for the Current Fiscal Year 

Maximum Allowable Tax Rate 
Adopted Tax Rate 
Additional Rate Available 

Total Taxable Value 
Additional Tax Levy Available (Debt Margin) 

Less: Amount Set Aside for Repayment 
of General Obligation Debt 

Legal Debt Margin 



TABLE 0-1 8 

CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

Water Revenue Bonds 
Utility Less: Net 

Fiscal Sewice Operating Available Debt Service 
Year Charges Expenses Revenue Principal interest Coverage 

0.96% 
-0.07% 
1.87% 
8.39% 

22.07% 
12.89% 
3.52% 
nla 
nla 
nla 



TABLE D-19 

CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) (2) 

Per Capita School (4) 
Fiscal Personal Personal Median Enrollment Unemployment 

Year Population Income Income Age (KISD) Rate 

Sources: 
(1) North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) 
(2) Keller Independent School District (KISD) 
(3) Bureau of Census 
(4) Texas Workforce Commission 



TABLE D-20 

CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
(UNAUDITED) 

Emplover 

Sabre Corporation 
AMR Corporation 
Fidelity investments 
Keller ISD 
Nokia 
Motorola 
Daimler Chrysler 
Southwestern Bell 
Advanced PCS Systems 
JC Penney 
Corning Cable Systems 
Southstar Logistics 

Total 

Employees Rank 

Percentagep 
of Total City 
Employment Employees 

1997 
Percentage 
of Total City 

Rank Employment 

1997 information is unavailable. 



TABLE D-21 

ClTY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
FULL-TIME-EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

General Government 
Management Services 
Finance 
Planning 
Building 
Other 

Police 
Officers 
Civilians 

Fire 
Firefighters and Officers 
Civilians 

Public Works 
Engineering 
Other 

Parks and Recreation 
Libraly 
Water 
Wastewater 
Drainage 

Full-Time-Equivalent Employees as of Year End 
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

Total 166.86 176.00 183.92 203.82 222.97 245.61 270.96 296.77 316.81 335.19 

Source: Information provided by city stafl 



TABLE D-22 

CITY OF KELLER, TEXAS 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) - - 

1997 
Function/Prograrn 

General Government 
Council & work sessions held 
Cable broadcasts 
Birthldeath certificates issued 
Building Permits Issued 
New construction plan review 

Police 
Physical Arrests 
Total Citations Issued 
Total emergency '91 1 ' calls 
Calls for Service 

Animal Control 
Animal adoptions 
Stray animal complaints 
Animals impounded 
Nuisance wildlife trapped 
Dog bite investigations 

Fire 
Emergency Responses 
Calls for Service, excludes EMS 
Fire Hydrants Maintained 
Inspections 

Finance 
Accounts payable checks processed 5,118 
Payroll checks processed 4,212 
Journal entries posted 1,409 
Purchase orders processed 2,853 

Human Resources 
Applications processed 
Vacancies filled 
Turnover rate 
Safety classes conducted 
Worker compensation claims 

Fiscal Year 
2001 -- 2002 



TABLE D-22 
(CONTINUED) 

- - -  --- - - 
Fiscal Year 

1997 1998 1399 2000 am 2002 

Municipal Court 
Citations processed 
Warrants processed 
Court sessions 
Defendant requests for court date 

Public Works 
Review CIP designed by others 7 5 4 7 8 9 
Street Resurfacing (miles) -- -- 4 6 9 3 
Sidewalks repaired (linear feet) 600 600 351 300 400 1,000 

Parks and Recreation 
Park acreage 
Facility reservations 
Sr Citizen center participations 
Athletic Field Permits Issued 
Recreation programs provided 

Library 
Library customer visits 
Total volumes borrowed 
Volumes in collection 

Water 
New Customers (net) 450 761 766 859 641 41 0 
Water Main Breaks nla n/a n/a 28 74 86 
Average Daily Consumption (000 gal.) 4,053 5,075 5,261 7,014 6,700 6,000 
Peak Daily Consumption (000 gal.) 9,114 13,200 14,400 16,000 16,000 17,000 

Wastewater 
Average Daily Sewage Treatment (000 gals) 1,532 1,599 1,726 1,857 2,214 2,427 

Source: lnformation provided by city staff. lnformation was not collected, and therefore not available where 'n/ai is shown. 
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